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Briefing Note — Information

Thursday, March 21, 2019

1. Reception—=5:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Dinner — 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.
(8" Floor Dining Room)

2. Plenary Session — 7:00 p.m. to 9:00
p.m. (8" Floor Council Chambers)

e Licensing and Registration Presentation

e White Papers

= Modernizing the Industrial Exception
Clause in the Act

= The Need for a Policy on Land
Acknowledgement

= 2 Year Experience Requirement

= Adding Value and Relevancy to Briefing
Notes
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WHITE PAPER

¢ |f the matter does in fact have merit the
proponent will prepare a one page white
paper outlining the issue or concern to be
submitted to Council

® White papers must be received by the Secre-

tariat 21 days prior to the Council meeting
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Brieting Note — White Paper

MODERNIZING THE INDUSTRIAL-EXCEPTION CLAUSE IN THE ACT

Purpose: A proposal for modernizing the Industrial-Exception clause of the Professional
Engineers Act, to narrow down its application, and exclude the nuclear industry from the
current exemption.

No motion required

Prepared by: Councillors Torabi, Ph.D, P.Eng. and Wowchuk, P.Eng.

Widespread misuse of the Industrial-Exception clause by large corporations

Over the past thirty-five years, the Industrial-Exception clause has been exploited so
broadly by virtually every engineering and manufacturing firm in Ontario, that only a small
percentage of engineering work in industry still requires the P.Eng licence. (It is notable that
this problem does not exist elsewhere in Canada, as other regulators' Acts do not have such an
exemption.) The (ab)use of the Industrial Exception has spread so widely in Ontario that it
arguably defeats the whole purpose of the PEA. This loophole in the Act is so large as to defy
common sense, yet we live in a developed country—one of the top seven industrial nations in
the world.

An extremely important example merits particular examination: Nuclear power generation
in Ontario is effectively immune from regulation under the Act. Nuclear operators make
use of the Industrial-Exception clause, claiming that, for power generation within the confines
of their property, PEO has no jurisdiction and cannot force them to have professional engineers
prepare, review and approve their process design, design modification, operation,
maintenance, or even their nuclear-safety analysis! They also argue that they are federally
regulated and that Ontario's PEA does not apply. In fact, they are internationally regulated by
the International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA); however that does not mean that PEA also
does not apply to them! Regulation is fragmented and uncoordinated, because each of the
regulators (Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission, International Atomic Energy Agency,
Canadian Environment Assessment Act, and Technical Standards and Safety Authority) are
involved in isolation.

It is ironic that the majority of nuclear facilities are owned and run by the government, but
they invoke the Industrial-Exception clause to exempt themselves from government statutes
such as the PEA. Interestingly, the one nuclear facility which is privately operated (Bruce
Power) was supporting PEO’s attempt to repeal the Industrial-Exception!

If Ontario’s old fleet of nuclear stations does not fall within PEO’s mandate to protect public
safety and to ensure that licensed engineers are involved in the design, modification,
operation, and maintenance of such plants, then what does fall within PEO’s mandate? A
plumber who calls himself an engineer? Or a small injection-moulding part manufacturer,
whom the Industrial-Exception was initially intended to serve?

525t meeting of Council — March 21-22, 2019
Association of Professional
Engineers of Ontario



PEQO’s Role and the Public Interest

Let's ask a fairly simple question: What exactly is PEO’s role in protecting the public
interest? Does minimizing manufacturing processes' hazards and risks to the public, which
could easily traverse their property fence, fall within the mandate of the PEO and the
Professional Engineers Act?

This raises the question of which manufacturers should avail themselves of the Industrial-
Exception clause, and which should not. The Industrial-Exception simply should not be
used as a blank cheque to cover all industries, small and large, low-risk and high-risk. PEO
should not be prevented from enforcing the essence of the Act. The Industrial Exception
should be used only in the short term—not a half-century—to assist small manufacturers who
have limited financial resources, and then, only those whose manufacturing-process hazards
have absolutely no significant impact on public safety.

With modernization of the Industrial Exception, PEO must act to minimize the risk of its
misuse, and to protect the public interest. Our mandate does not include convincing the
industry to improve their engineering processes or changing their philosophy toward health and
safety of their workers (inside their fence), however, PEO has a responsibility to ensure the
public interest is protected by the safe operation of large engineering and manufacturing firms.
PEO must ensure the Industrial-Exception clause is not being misused by companies,
without proper assessments to ensure large-scale industrial accidents remain within the
boundary of those firms and have no impact on the public outside the plant’s boundary.
This was one of the conclusions in British Columbia at the inquiry into the breach of a mining
dam at Mount Polley.

The Urgency of the Matter

The current widespread misuse of the Industrial-Exception clause by manufacturing and
engineering firms needs urgent attention, and the Industrial-Exception clause needs to be
“modernized”, so that the high-risk industries, such as nuclear-power plants and refineries—
with the potential risk of releasing radioactive and toxic chemicals into the public’s lungs and
contaminating the entire province’s land for decades—cannot be excluded from the Act.

This requires PEO to develop a strategy—a convincing argument supporting the
observation that the 35-year-old Industrial Exception has been misused. The Act needs to be
updated, enhanced and modernized.

Our Proposal

The objective of this document is to propose a path forward toward the goal of
modernizing the Industrial-Exception clause in the Act, by taking the following steps:

o Prepare a report to explain why certain industries, nuclear in particular, must not be
allowed to take advantage of the Industrial-Exception clause, because they introduce major
risks to the public and the province beyond their plant’s boundary fence, and it is PEO’s
duty to protect the public’s interest from such risks.

o PEO’s Legislation Committee (LEC) should prepare updated clauses for the Act limiting
and clarifying the appropriate scope of the Industrial Exception, and present a report to
Council.

Appendices

e OPG Job Posting — Senior Technical Engineer Officer
e OPG Job Posting — Technical Engineer (all levels)
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Senior Technical Engineer/Officer

Location: Bowmanville, ON, CA, L1C 3Z8
Req ID: 1427

Status: Contract (24 months)

Education Level: Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering, Computer Science, Mechatronics
Engineering, or Electrical Engineering

Location(s): Bowmanville, ON
Travel: Yes- 10%
Deadline to Apply: February 13, 2019

https://jobs.opg.com/job/Bowmanville-Senior-Technical-EngineerOfficer-ON-L1C-328/533245217/ 1/4
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2/3/2019 Senior Technical Engineer/Officer
BE THE GENERATION to challenge and change.

At Ontario Power Generation (OPG), our values are our strengths. They are fundamental truths about us that
don’t change. Safety. Integrity. Excellence. People and Citizenship. We operate a diverse portfolio of
generation assets including nuclear, hydroelectric, biomass and solar, and offer challenging and unique work
opportunities. BE THE GENERATION to power tomorrow.

JOB OVERVIEW

Ontario Power Generation (OPG) is looking for a dedicated and results driven professional to join our team in
the role of Senior Technical Engineer/Officer in Bowmanville, Ontario. Working on the Computers and
Control Design Team supporting our Darlington Nuclear Station and reporting to the Section Manager,
Computer & Control design, Darlington DCCs & OH180s. In this position, you will have the opportunity to
contribute to Ontario Power Generation by coordinating and collaborating with both internal and external
stakeholders. You will be required to understand schedules, finances and required performance for the
assigned projects.

The ideal candidate must have a Bachelor’s Degree, experience and knowledge in systems engineering,
computer programming, cyber security, computer networking and computer architecture.

This is an exciting opportunity to work in an environment where you will contribute to Ontario Power
Generation’s continued growth and success in generating safe, clean, reliable low-cost power in a sustainable
manner.

KEY ACCOUNTABILITIES

» Working with a multi-disciplined team of engineering and technical specialists to support the operation of
the various computer, digital, control, instrumentation and electrical systems;

» Developing and executing projects in compliance with the industry's demanding set of regulations and
standards;

» Maintaining written documented processes and procedures to reflect improved operating methods and
additions to all supported systems;

« Co-ordinate the clarification of specification requirements, and arrange for necessary changes and/or co-
ordinate technical work as required in a number of major work areas;

» Maintain and/or update operating and other specified department/divisional procedures;

« Provide technical evaluations and advice, solve problems and coordinate technical work as required, in a
number of major work areas, in support of the commissioning, operation and maintenance of the facilities.

» Day-to-day support of cyber security, networking and computer architecture;

» Review, monitor and stay informed of new security advisories, alerts, vulnerabilities and news;

« Support emergent issues as necessary;

» Investigate and disposition cyber threats from CIO/Canadian Cyber Threat Exchange;

« Firewall maintenance (FCRs, log checks upon request, and configuration specs);

» Review Modifications (i.e., DSC/NICR, Identification/Classification, design guidance) that may come in that
requires Cyber SPOC approval/review;

» Provide annual updates on Cyber Security reports and lists;

» Participate in any Incident Response Dirills as necessary;

 Participate in training, continuous training/additional learning, and new technology opportunities as
necessary.

EDUCATION

» Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering, Computer Science, Mechatronics Engineering, or Electrical
Engineering

https://jobs.opg.com/job/Bowmanville-Senior-Technical-EngineerOfficer-ON-L1C-328/533245217/ 2/4



2/3/2019 Senior Technical Engineer/Officer
QUALIFICATIONS

« Excellent verbal and written communication skills, including the ability to develop and deliver reports,
briefings, project plans.

» Good organizational and leadership skills, and to be a self-starter who can work both independently and in
a team environment that is dedicated to engineering excellence and best practices.

« Strong in understanding, executing and following governance and procedures with a questioning and
analytical attitude/approach under minimum required supervision

» 2+ years’ related computer experience (asset);

» Experience with scripting languages;

» Experience in any COG or other Cyber related meetings, conferences and training regarding cyber
security pertaining to instrumentation and control (1&C);

» Previous experience and/or knowledge of cyber security, networking and computer architecture is
required,;

» Experience and/or knowledge of CSA N290.7;

» Experience working in a nuclear power plant and/or large utility organization (asset)

WHY OPG?

As Ontario’s largest clean energy generator, OPG offers an exciting combination of challenging opportunities
and career diversity in a work environment where safety is a fundamental value. Being an OPG employee
means you can apply your knowledge, broaden your skills and make a valuable contribution to an
organization that is vital to Ontario's success.

At OPG, our values are our strengths. They are fundamental truths about our organization that don’t change.
Safety. Integrity. Excellence. People and Citizenship.

Here's why OPG might just be the ideal workplace for you:

« Exceptional range of opportunities province-wide
+ Long-term career growth and development opportunities
« Electricity is vital to the province

If you are looking to learn from others and be part of something important, and you are excited about the
future of power generation, you will find the right fit at OPG.

Our promise to you:

« We care about the safety and the well-being of our employees. It is our utmost priority.
» A supportive work environment where you can be your best every day.

« Opportunities to stretch and develop in our diverse lines of business.

« Provide spaces for innovative thinking and solutions, such as Launchpad or X-Lab.

» Offer different ways for you to give back to communities where we operate.

+ We support employment equity and diversity.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Please submit your application online at https://jobs.opg.com/ by 11:59 PM E.S.T., February 13, 2019. OPG
thanks all those who apply; however, only candidates considered for an interview will be contacted.

ACCOMMODATIONS

OPG is committed to fostering an inclusive, equitable, and accessible environment where all employees feel
valued, respected, and supported. If you require accommodation during the application or interview process,
please advise us as soon as possible so appropriate arrangements can be made.

https://jobs.opg.com/job/Bowmanville-Senior-Technical-EngineerOfficer-ON-L1C-328/533245217/ 3/4
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2/3/2019 Senior Technical Engineer/Officer

If you require information in a format that is accessible to you, please contact AODA@opg.com

Find similar jobs:
View All Jobs, Renewable Generation (RG), Nuclear, Engineering, Corporate
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©2017, Ontario Power Generation Inc. All Rights Reserved
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2/3/2019 Technical Engineer (ALL LEVELS)
Deadline to Apply: February 24, 2019

BE THE GENERATION to challenge and change.

At Ontario Power Generation (OPG), our values are our strengths. They are fundamental truths about us that
don’t change. Safety. Integrity. Excellence. People and Citizenship. We operate a diverse portfolio of
generation assets including nuclear, hydroelectric, biomass and solar, and offer challenging and unique work
opportunities. BE THE GENERATION to power tomorrow.

JOB OVERVIEW

OPG is looking for a dedicated, results driven and dynamic Engineers to join our team in the role of Technical
Engineer at our Pickering or Darlington locations.

As a Technical Engineer you will have the opportunity to contribute to Ontario Power Generation by
coordinating and collaborating with both internal and external stakeholders. You will be required to understand
schedules, finances and required performance for the assigned projects.

We are looking for the following disciplines:

+ Mechanical Engineer

» Electrical/l&C Engineer
o Civil/Structural Engineer
* Nuclear Engineer

This is an exciting opportunity to work in an environment where you will contribute to Ontario Power
Generation’s continued growth and success in generating safe, clean, reliable low-cost power in a sustainable
manner.

KEY ACCOUNTABILITIES

« Working with a multi-disciplined team of engineering and technical specialists to support the operation of
the various mechanical and electrical systems;

« Developing and executing projects in compliance with customer expectations and the industry's
demanding set of regulations and standards;

« Maintaining written documented processes and procedures to reflect improved operating methods and
additions to all supported systems;

« Co-ordinate the clarification of specification requirements, and arrange for necessary changes and/or co-
ordinate technical work as required in a number of major work areas;

« Maintain and/or update operating and other specified department/divisional procedures;

« Solve problems, to provide advice and guidance, to initiate developmental studies and to make
recommendations during the design, commissioning and operation of a nuclear facility; to evaluate
components or materials, and to perform economic studies and evaluations associated with the design,
commissioning and operation of a nuclear facility.

EDUCATION

» University Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering or Applied Science
» P.Eng (asset)

QUALIFICATIONS

« Excellent verbal and written communication skills, including the ability to develop and deliver reports,
briefings, project plans.
» Good organizational and leadership skills, and to be a self-starter who can work both independently and in
a team environment that is dedicated to engineering excellence and best practices.
https://jobs.opg.com/job/Bowmanville-Technical-Engineer-%28ALL-LEVELS%29-ON-L1C-3Z8/533285317/ 2/4



2/3/2019 Technical Engineer (ALL LEVELS)

« Have a strong interest in fast-paced, challenging work environments where showing initiative and self
motivation are assets;

« Strong in understanding, executing and following governance and procedures with a questioning and
analytical attitude/approach under minimum required supervision;

» Experience managing projects;

» Proven track record on delivering results;

» Experience and familiarity with OPGN ECC processes and standards (asset).

WHY OPG?

As Ontario’s largest clean energy generator, OPG offers an exciting combination of challenging opportunities
and career diversity in a work environment where safety is a fundamental value. Being an OPG employee
means you can apply your knowledge, broaden your skills and make a valuable contribution to an
organization that is vital to Ontario's success.

At OPG, our values are our strengths. They are fundamental truths about our organization that don’t change.
Safety. Integrity. Excellence. People and Citizenship.

Here's why OPG might just be the ideal workplace for you:

» Exceptional range of opportunities province-wide

+ Long-term career growth and development opportunities

» Electricity is vital to the province
If you are looking to learn from others and be part of something important, and you are excited about the
future of power generation, you will find the right fit at OPG.

Our promise to you:

» We care about the safety and the well-being of our employees. It is our utmost priority.
« A supportive work environment where you can be your best every day.

» Opportunities to stretch and develop in our diverse lines of business.

» Provide spaces for innovative thinking and solutions, such as Launchpad or X-Lab.

» Offer different ways for you to give back to communities where we operate.

« We support employment equity and diversity.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Please submit your application online at https://jobs.opg.com/ by 11:59 PM E.S.T., February 24, 2019. OPG
thanks all those who apply; however, only candidates considered for an interview will be contacted.

ACCOMMODATIONS

OPG is committed to fostering an inclusive, equitable, and accessible environment where all employees feel
valued, respected, and supported. If you require accommodation during the application or interview process,
please advise us as soon as possible so appropriate arrangements can be made.

If you require information in a format that is accessible to you, please contact AODA@opg.com

Find similar jobs:
View All Jobs, Renewable Generation (RG), Nuclear, Engineering, Corporate
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Brleflng NOte —_ Whlte Paper C-525-Plenary

THE NEED FOR A POLICY ON LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Purpose:That PEO has a Policy on Land Acknowledgement that will define how and
when we should start a meeting with a Land Acknowledgement.

No motion required

Prepared by: President-Elect Hill

Submitted by Nancy Hill, Marisa Sterling and Ramesh Ramesh Subramanian.

There is a need for an overarching PEO policy on land acknowledgement for all of PEO
activities. This would include all Chapter, Committee and Head Office events where
appropriate. It is our observation that many public event start with a land
acknowledgement. We believe that this is something that is recommended in the Truth
and Reconciliation Report and in our opinion this is something that as a Provincial
Regulator we should support and acknowledge.

It is something that at least some Chapters are currently doing in their public events. It
is also something that was done at the 2018 OPEA.

We need to define when this should be done; how we determine the appropriate
acknowledgement and how to execute on the land acknowledgements.

This relates to Objective 3 — Enhance PEQO’s public image and Objective 9 — Enhance
corporate culture in the 2018-202 Stragic Plan.

We believe that this is something that as an organization we should support.

525" Meeting of Council — March 21, 22, 2019
Association of Professional
Engineers of Ontario



Brieting Note — White Paper C-525-Plenary

Return to 2-Year Experience Requirement

Purpose: Given no evidence of protection benefit for the public and no realized member benefit
from the move to a 4-year experience requirement, and given a shorter experience requirement
would in general speed up the member licensure process, PEO needs to return to a minimum 2-
year experience requirement post-graduation.

No motion required

submitted March 4, 2019

Prepared by: Roydon Fraser

1. Matter Identification:
History and Observations (Based primarily on my knowledge being on Council when PEO moved to
the 4-year experience requirement in the 1990s, and being on both Council and ARC since then.):

° PEO moved to the 4-year requirement in part to harmonize the experience
requirement between provinces.
° The prime argument many used to try and convince resistant PEO Councillors to

support the move to a 4-year experience requirement, from the 2-year experience
requirement, was the anticipated promise of reciprocity agreements with U.S. States.

° Two U.S. States with whom efforts were made to negotiate reciprocity were
Michigan and Texas. Neither state agreed to experience reciprocity.
° When | first came on Council my first motion was to stop the move to the 4-year

experience requirement because none of the serious arguments put forward for the
move pertained to the protection of the public, and there was no evidence that the
move would do anything to enhance the protection of the public.

° When my motion to return to the 2-year experience requirement failed | introduced
motion for enabling 1-year pre-graduation experience.
° The fact that 1-year pre-graduation experience was readily accepted by PEO and in

other provinces reveals the discomfort that existed with moving to a 4-year
requirement, but the hopes of reciprocity with the U.S., if realized, would be of major
society economic and member benefit.

° There has been much evidence that the 4-year experience requirement significantly
delays many from being licensed, thus forming an increased barrier to licensure
compared to a 2-year experience requirement.

In conclusion, with no realized benefits from the move to a 4-year experience requirement, and with
definite benefits moving to a minimum 2-year post-graduation experience requirement, PEO needs
to identify clear and cogent evidence that there are benefits to a 4-year experience requirement
that out way the benefits to society and members, otherwise it needs to return to a 2-year post-
graduation experience requirement.

[Pre-graduation experience should only remain if there is clear evidence that it has tangible net
benefit. If it remains the new experience requirement would be 3-years, not 2 or 4.]

2. Peer Review To be conducted as part of staff preparation of the motion in support of
proposed policy change back to a 2-year post-graduation experience
requirement.

3. Value Added Speedier admissions process, more accommodating of entrepreneurs, and
potentially captures more of those who should be licensed.
Value Lost None known. No evidence public would be less protected.
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Brieting Note — White Paper

C-525-Plenary

Adding Value and Relevancy to Briefing Notes

Purpose: To require a "Value Added" statement be added to PEO Council briefing notes in order
to better communicate to the public and members the value contribution PEO Council makes, to
provide a metric for the relevancy of a PEO agenda item, and to preserve understanding into
what Council valued at the time of a motion.

No motion required submitted March 4, 2019

Prepared by: Roydon Fraser

1. Matter Identification:

Few members understand what PEO Council actually does, and many of those who
have some understanding believe PEO Council does not do enough or wastes its
time on issues of lesser importance. Understanding the value proposition behind
Council policies will assist in clarifying the value PEO Council provides the public
and members. And by being explicit about the value proposition a permanent record
is kept that will better inform future PEO Councils, future members, and future
governments about the value PEO has to offer the people of Ontario.

For PEO to move towards demonstrating "relecancy" to the public and members it is
better to have a clear record that identifies the value PEO Council provides.
Knowing the value proposition on motions that result in Act, Regulation, or By-Law
changes will assist the Legislative Committee in ensuring the intent of such changes
are more accurately captured.

Hisotrically, and using the past year as an example, virtually all of PEO Council's
time (often entire Council agendas) has been spent on operations and governance
issues instead of tackling issue of importance to the engineering profession and
protection of the public. Refer to Appendix A: Yearly Plea for some examples of
such important issues.

In conclusion, being explicit about Value Added is an important part of establishing “relevancy”, and
establishing PEO relevancy is important for PEO to address potential threats to self-regulation.

2. Peer Review

The form and content of PEO Council Briefing Notes is at the sole discretion of PEO
Council. PEO Council and staff are suggested stakeholders to provide peer review.

3. Value Added

° To better communicate through explicit statements the value PEO Council provides
the public and members. To improve the ability to demonstrate to the public and
members that PEO Council is doing good work.

° To provide a metric for judging relevancy and priority on PEO Council agendas.

° To preserve understanding as to Council's thinking concerning the importance,
usefulness, and value of a Council motion. This can be very useful when trying to
understand intent such as when LEC works to implement PEOCouncil motions into
Act, Regulation, or By-Law changes.

° To hopefully, by being explicit about the Value Added in motions, it will encourage
PEO Coucnil to tackle more directly and in a more timely fashion some of the larger
issues facing the profession.

Value Lost:

° None known.

4. Appendix A: My Yearly Plea, April 21, 2018 by Roydon Fraser
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C-525-Plenary
My Yearly Plea Appendix A

by Roydon A. Fraser
April 21, 2018

Please, please, please, can there be
no, nay, never, no, nay never, no more governance motions
on Council’s agendas this year.

Corollary: Please, please, please use this year to develop governance ‘understanding.’

Mayjor over-reaching problem for PEO:

We govern with a steam engine/electricity age culture (2nd Industrial Revolution)
when we are on the verge of entering the 5th Industrial Revolution (i.e., Al).

BIG. BIGGER, and BIGGEST ISSUES
(this is a decade plus list that PEO has never addressed!)

1. Relevancy
[“I’'m a lumber-jack and I'm OK™]
2. Value-Added
[(a) demonstration of, and (b) culture of value-added]
3. Communication
[e.g., self-promoting use of regulatory tools]
Entrepreneurs
Globalization
Whistle Blowing / Doing your Duty
Natural Scientists
Privacy/Security
[includes Data Mining - think Facebook]
0. Artificial Intelligence/Internet of Things/Autonomous Vehicles
[this is the only younger than decade issue, but reveals
society moves on even if PEO does not.]

XNk

Corollary: Big, Bigger, Biggest Issues require a major change of culture and thinking at PEO

PEO

Regulated (—

85,000

T Un-regulated

Engineering

Trained
250,000
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C-525-1.1

Briefing Note - Decision

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Purpose: To approve the agenda for the meeting.

Motion(s) to consider: (requires a simple majority of votes cast to carry)

That:
a) the agenda, as presented to the meeting at C-525-1.1, Appendix A be approved; and
b) the Chair be authorized to suspend the regular order of business.

Prepared by: Dale Power, Secretariat Administrator

Appendices:
e Appendix A — 525" Council meeting agenda

525th Meeting of Council — March 21-22, 2019 Association of Professional
Engineers of Ontario
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C-525-1.1
Appendix A

Professional Engineers
Ontario

101-40 Sheppard Ave. W.,
Toronto, ON M2N 6K9

T: 416 224-1100 800 339-3716
WWW.peo.on.ca

Agenda

525" Meeting of the Council
Professional Engineers Ontario

Date: Friday, March 22, 2019
Time: Friday — 9:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.
Place: PEO Offices — 8" Floor Council Chambers

40 Sheppard Avenue West
Toronto, Ontario

Thursday, March 21 — 7:00 p.m. — 9:00 p.m.

OR

REVISED

Dial-in: 1-888-866-3653

Participant Code: 9394319#

Spokesperson

PLENARY SESSION

1. Licensing and Registration Presentation
2. White Papers

Moody/Pauline/Faris

Friday, March 22 — 9:00 a.m. — 4:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Spokesperson/ Type
Moved by
1.1 | APPROVAL OF AGENDA Chair Decision
2. PRIORITY ITEMS Spokesperson/ Type
Moved by
2.1 | 2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Councillor Bhatia Decision
2.2 | RECOMMENDATIONS OF AN AUDITOR FOR 2019 Councillor Bhatia Decision
2.3 | NEW EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY Councillor Bhatia Decision
2.4 | BY-LAW NO. 1 CHANGES — 2019 FEE INCREASES Councillor Houghton Decision
2.5 | EQUITY & DIVERSITY COMMITTEE — CHAPTER EQUITY Councillor Decision
AND DIVERSITY AWARD Subramanian
2.6 | ENGINEERS CANADA FUNDING TASK FORCE REPORT FOR | President-Elect Hill Decison
CONSULTATION — FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS
2.7 | APPOINTMENT OF PEO DIRECTOR TO ENGINEERS Past President Dony Decision
CANADA BOARD
2.8 | PEO SYLLABUS — SOFTWARE ENGINEERING SYLLABUS Councillor Dony Decision
2.9 | REQUEST FROM OACETT TO EXTEND DAVE BROWN'’S Councillor Kirkby Decision

TERM FOR ONE YEAR




2.10 | HRC’'S RECOMMENDATION REGARDING BOARD President-Elect Hill Decision
APPOINTMENTS CRITERIA DECISION MATRIX AND
APPLICATION FORM
2.11 | CANADIAN ENGINEERING ACCREDITATION BOARD Councillor Information
(CEAB) NOMINATING COMMITTEE REQUEST Subramanian
2.12 | IMPLEMENTATION OF FINANCIAL CREDIT PROGRAM Jordan Max Information
CHANGES
2.13 | RECOMMENDATION FOR IMPROVING THE Councillor Reid Information
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
2.14 | ENGINEER-IN-RESIDENCE (EIR) PROGRAM Tracey Carauna Information
3. CONSENT AGENDA Spokesperson/ Type
Moved by
3.1 | OPEN SESSION MINUTES — 524" COUNCIL MEETING — Chair Decision
FEBRUARY 8, 2019
3.2 | APPROVAL OF CEDC APPLICATIONS Councillor Bhatia Decision
3.3 | CHANGES TO THE 2019 PEO COMMITTEES AND TASK Councillor Kirkby Decision
FORCES MEMBERSHIP ROSTER
3.4 | APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM CORPORATE SECRETARY Past President Dony Decision
4. |IN-CAMERA Spokesperson/ Type
Moved by
4.1 | IN-CAMERA MINUTES — 524t COUNCIL MEETING - Chair Decision
FEBRUARY 8, 2019
4.2 | REGULATION CHANGE — PROVISIONAL LICENCE Councillor Houghton Decision
4.3 | SCOTT JOHNSON CORONER’S INQUEST President-elect Hill Decision
4.4 | 2019 ONTARIO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AWARD Councillor Hidalgo Decision
NOMINEES (OPEA)
4.5 | HRC UPDATE President Brown Information
4.6 | DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE — DECISIONS AND REASONS Linda Latham Information
4.7 | LEGAL UPDATE Linda Latham Information
4.8 | COMPLAINTS REVIEW COUNCILLOR (CRC) Councillor Kouakou Information
4.9 | PEO’S ANTI-WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND VIOLENCE Chair Information
POLICIES — COUNCILLOR VIOLATIONS, IF ANY
5. INFORMATION ITEMS Spokesperson/ Type
Moved by
ONGOING ITEMS
5.1 | COUNCIL ACTION LOG Chair Information
5.2 | REGULATORY RISK REGISTER Chair Information
5.3 | COUNCILLOR ITEMS Chair Information




Please note that in order to streamline the agenda, Committee reports will no longer be included
in the agenda package. Committee Chairs are asked to submit their written reports to the
Secretariat for posting on the Council SharePoint site prior to each Council meeting. These
reports will not be discussed at the meeting unless a Councillor or an EC Director asks to address a
specific item contained within the written report. The reports submitted as of March 15, 2019
are:

e Engineers Canada

e Government Liaison Committee

e Joint Relations Committee

e Legislation Committee

e Regional Councillors Committee

e Stats

The link below will take you directly to the reports.

525 Council Reports

Councillors Code of Conduct

Council expects of itself and its members ethical, business-like and lawful conduct. This includes
fiduciary responsibility, proper use of authority and appropriate decorum when acting as Council
members or as external representatives of the association. Council expects its members to treat
one another and staff members with respect, cooperation and a willingness to deal openly on all
matters.

PEO is committed that its operations and business will be conducted in an ethical and legal

manner. Each participant (volunteer) is expected to be familiar with, and to adhere to, this code
as a condition of their involvement in PEO business. Each participant shall conduct PEO business
with honesty, integrity and fairness and in accordance with the applicable laws. The Code of
Conduct is intended to provide the terms and/or spirit upon which acceptable/unacceptable
conduct is determined and addressed.

At its September 2006 meeting, Council determined that PEO volunteers should meet the same
obligations and standards regarding conduct when engaged in PEO activities as they are when
engaged in business activities as professional engineers.

[s. 2.4 of the Council Manual]



https://dm.peo.on.ca/pcs/Council/Current%20Council%20Year/Forms/AllItems.aspx?RootFolder=%2Fpcs%2FCouncil%2FCurrent%20Council%20Year%2F2018-19%20Council%20Meetings%2F525%20Council%20-%20March%2019%2FReports&FolderCTID=0x012000681F11E4970BDB4C8BBB6B61967393C3&View=%7bA423323A-8D9D-4E8D-AB9F-B682576430FF%7d

2019 Council Committe Meeting/Mailing Schedule

2019 Council Mailing Schedule

2019
Meeting Initial BN Initial BN Supp.
# Meeting Due Date— | Due Date - | Initial Agenda | Supp. Agenda ! Agenda
Date Members at | Councillors/ | Mailing Date Due Date Mailing
Large Staff Date
525 Council | Mar. 21-22 March 1 March 5 March 8 March 12 March 15
526 | Council | gy 42 April 12 April 16 April 19 April 23 April 26
! - requires the approval of the Chair or Registrar
2 - new Councillors to be invited as soon as information is available.
Upcoming Events
Date Event Location

Friday, May 3, 2019

Volunteer Leaders Conference
Order of Honour Gala

Toronto Hilton Hotel, Toronto, Ontario

Saturday, May 4, 2019

Annual General Meeting

Toronto Hilton Hotel, Toronto, Ontario

May 30 —June 1, 2019

Council Retreat

Deerhurst Resort, Huntsville, Ontario

November 16, 2019

Chapter Leaders Conference

Ontario Professional Engineers
Awards (OPEA)

Hilton Toronto Airport Hotel

Toronto International Centre




Brieﬁng Note — Decision C-525-2.1

2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Purpose: To approve the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
and the Auditor’s report thereon.

Motion to consider: (requires a simple majority of votes cast to carry)
That Council:
a) approve the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, and
the Auditor’s report thereon, as presented to the meeting at C-525-2.1, Appendix A; and
b) authorize the President and President-elect to sign the Audited Financial Statements on
Council’s behalf.

Prepared by: Chetan Mehta — Director, Finance
Motion Sponsor: Ishwar Bhatia, M.Eng., P.Eng., Eastern Region Councilor, Chair - Audit
Committee

1. Need for PEO Action

PEQO’s governing legislation and its By-laws require that Council approve the audited financial
statements of the Association for presentation to members at PEO’s Annual General Meeting and
that the statements be published on PEO’s website for access to all members.

The Audit Committee’s legislated mandate approved by Council is to:
- Oversee the auditing of the Association’s financial statements by an external auditor; and
- Monitor the accounting and financial reporting processes and systems of internal control.

PEO By-Law No. 1, section 51 states:

The Council shall lay before each Annual Meeting of the members a financial statement prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for the previous fiscal year of the
association (made up of a balance sheet as at the end of such fiscal year and statements of
revenue and expenditure and members’ equity for such fiscal year) together with the report of the
association’s auditors on the financial statement. The financial statements with (a summary of) the
auditor’s report shall be published in the official publication of the association after its approval by
the Council.

2. Proposed Action / Recommendation

That Council approve the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s report thereon for the
year ended December 31, 2018 for presentation to members at the 2019 Annual General Meeting,
and that the statements be published on PEQO’s website and in the next edition of Engineering
Dimensions, as required by legislation and PEQO’s by-laws.

3. Next Steps

Once the 2018 Financial Statements are approved and signed by the President and President-
elect, the audited financial statements will be available to members at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting and the statements will be published on PEO’s website in April and in the next edition of
Engineering Dimensions. A Financial Report and financial statement analysis will be prepared and
published as well.

A Q&A on PEOQO’s operations for 2018 will be developed for the 2019 Annual General Meeting
based on anticipated questions.

525th Meeting of Council — March 21-22, 2019 Association of Professional

Engineers of Ontario



4. Peer Review & Process Followed

The 2018 Audited Financial Statements and Auditor’s report were presented to
Process the Audit and Finance Committees for the joint meeting of these committees on
Followed Mar 12, 2019 for discussion and review. The Audit committee on Mar 13, 2019
recommended that the 2018 Audited Financial Statements and Auditor’s report be
approved.
Council
Identified
Review
Actual On March 13, 2019, the Audit Committee approved the 2018 Audited Financial
Motion Statements and Auditor’s report and recommended these be presented to Council
Review for approval.

5. Appendices
Appendix A — 2018 Audited Financial Statements and Auditor’s report
Appendix B — Audit & Finance Committee Report — year ended December 31, 2018

525th Meeting of Council — March 21-22, 2019 Association of Professional

Engineers of Ontario

Page 2 of 2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement of revenue, expenses and changes IR net g4sets

Balance sheet

1-2
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- Deloitte LLP
400 Applewood Crescent
Suite 500
Vaughan ON L4K 0C3
Canada

Tel: 416-601-6150

Fax: 416-601-6151
www.delpgifte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of thg€ Association o
of Ontario which comprise the balance sheet at December 31, 2Q18, and th& statements of revenue,
expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, ard notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (Csllectively r&ferred to as the
“financial statements”).

Professional Engineers

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statepients-present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Association of Professighal EngineersofQntario as at December 31, 2018, and
the results of its operations and its cash flowg for the year then ended~ accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organixation

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadjan genepally accepted auditing standards
(“Canadian GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements sextion of our report. We are independent of

are relevant to our audit of
responsibilities in accorda

ancial feporting process.

Ontario’s

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY


http://www.deloitte.ca/

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material miSstatement

taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional j}
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statem¥nts, whethe
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain a
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oyf opition. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, /i ations, or the override
of internal control.

opinion on the effectiveness of the Association of Professiona i Ontario’s internal
control.

based on the audit evidence obtained up to thy our auditor’s report. However, future
assional Engineers of Ontario to cease to

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario
Statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net assets
Year ended December 31, 2018

2018
Notes $
Revenue /
P. Eng revenue 15,731,903
Application, registration, examination and
other fees 6,966,526
Building operations 4 2,058,844
Advertising income 270,005
Investment income 64,460
25,091,738 24,838,883
Expenses \/

Staff salaries and benefits/retiree
future benefits

O

11,778,442 11,742,284

Building operations 4 2,494,427 2,401,801
Purchased services 1,620,259 1,492,430
Amortization 1,210,440 1,280,598
Legal (corporate, prosecution and tribunal) 1,072,994 913,788
Engineers Canada 982,774 960,080
Computers and telephone 968,239 854,024
Occupancy costs v 4 885,083 817,268
Chapters 13 817,850 887,498
Volunteer expenses 726,230 738,032
Transaction fees 544,817 536,201

Postage and courier 529,756 638,415
Contract staff 305,197 189,353
Consultants 235,196 459,679
Recognition, grants ang 141,498 178,010
Office supplies 134,263 132,120
Insurance 127,030 116,481
Printing 102,310 113,406
Advertising 99,268 156,729
Staff expenses 88,055 100,522
Professional development 86,057 120,985

24,950,185 24,829,704

141,553 9,179
8 18,472 34,967

123,081 (25,788)

934,800 80,755

16,094,555 16,039,588
17,152,436 16,094,555

The accompaxying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 3



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Balance sheet
As at December 31, 2018

2018 2017
Notes $
Assets
Current assets
Cash in interest bearing accounts 2,773,438
Marketable securities, at fair value 6,819,008
Accounts receivable 433,467
Prepaid expenses and deposits 404,162 389,089
Other assets 456,308 401,256
10,886,383 10,377,675
Capital assets 3 34,615,613 35,078,815
45,501,996 45,456,490
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15 2,215,435 1,787,457
Fees in advance and deposits 9,250,525 9,048,378
Current portion of long-term debt 5,607,000 980,000
17,072,960 11,815,835
Long-term v
Long-term debt 5 — 5,607,000
Employee future benefits 6 11,276,600 11,939,100
28,349,560 29,361,935
Net assets 7 17,152,436 16,094,555
Total liabilities and net agsets 45,501,996 45,456,490
Contingencies 16

The accompanying Qotes are ah integ part of the financial statements

Approved by the Council

Director

Director

RN
N

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY
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Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario
Statement of cash flows
Year ended December 31, 2018

2018
Notes $

Operating activities
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash

Amortization 2,208,
Amortization - other assets 77,339
Employee future benefits expensed 1,222,000 1,218,555
Change in unrealized losses (gains) on
marketable securities 1917 (190,013)
(Gains) Losses on disposal of marketable
securities (24,005) 71,931
3,788,351 3,376,223
Change in non-cash working capital items 10 608,314 107,844
4,396,665 3,484,067
N
Financing activities
Repayment of mortgage (980,000) (952,000)
Contributions to employee future benefit plans (949,700) (1,173,200)
v (1,929,700)  (2,125,200)
Investing activities
Net change in marketable securities (169,321) (135,971)
Additions to capital assets (1,745,717) (249,576)
Additions to other assets (132,391) (68,743)
(2,047,429) (454,290)
Increase in cash 419,536 904,577
Cash, beginning of yed 2,353,902 1,449,325
Cash, end of year 2,773,438 2,353,902

The accompanying notes\are an integ«al part of the financial statements.

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

Page 5



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

1. Nature of operations

at each reporting date, as follows:

(i)

Asset/liability

Fair value
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

The hedged item or the hedging item ceases to exist other than as designated and
documented;

The critical terms of the hedging item cease to match those of the hedged item,
including, but not limited to, when it becomes probable that an interest-bearing asset
or liability hedged with an interest rate swap will be prepaid.

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 6



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

b)

o)

)

e

Hedge accounting (continued)

those of the hedged item, or it is no longer probable that an anticipated/transaction will
occur in the amount designated or within 30 days of the maturity date of the hedgingNtemn
any gain or loss is recognized in net income.

Revenue recognition

License fee revenue, excluding the portion related tofthe B&ildipg Fupd, is recognized as
revenue on a monthly basis over the license period{ Building Fund revenue is recognized as
revenue at the commencement of the license period.\Qther revenies are recognized when
the related services are provided.

Donated services

are not recorded in the accounts of'the Association.

Employee future benefits
Pension plans

The cost of PEO’s defined benefit pension plans
actuaries using the proje

¢ determined periodically by independent
ed benefit method profated on service. PEO uses the most

year for measuring itg non-pénsion defined benefit plan obligations. The valuation is based
0 epxojected benefi éthod prorated on service.

benefit obligation, net of the fair value of any plan assets, adjusted forany
the statement of changes in net assets;

gost of the plan for the year.

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 7



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
f) Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the stréi
the following annual rates.

Building 2
Building improvements - PEO 5%

Building improvements - common area 3.3% to 10%
Building improvements - non-recoverable 0% to 20%
Computer hardware and software
Furniture, fixtures and telephone equipme

Audio visual

The Association’s investment in capital assets is in

Balance sheet.

g) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Cana
nagement to make estir

for not-for-profit organizations requires,
that affect the reported amounts of agsets an
and liabilities at the date of the fin

cial statements an

dian

ded as patt of et assets on the

Accounting standards
ates and assumptions
ilities and disclosure of contingent assets
reported amounts of revenue

clude capital assets, accrued

and expenses during the reporting\periodYActual results coytd differ from those estimates.
Accounts requiring significant estim§tes a mptions j

liabilities, and employee future benefits.

3. Capital assets

2018 2017
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ $
Building 19,414,668 3,807,780 15,606,888 15,995,181
8,939,501 3,342,895 5,596,606 6,030,579
10,556,393 3,615,416 6,940,977 6,656,006
359,676 22,770 336,906 —
4,366,303 - 4,366,303 4,366,303
Co
software 4,786,864 3,735,380 1,051,484 1,504,923
Furpitake, fixtures\and
1,438,058 1,138,884 299,174 411,827
1,008,316 935,591 72,725 112,913
344,550 - 344,550 1,083
51,214,329 16,598,716 34,615,613 35,078,815

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY
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Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

4. Building operations

PEO maintains accounting records for the property located at 40 Sheppard Averue Wegst,
Toronto, ON as a stand-alone operation for internal purposes. The results of !

Revenue
Rental
Operating cost recoverable - tenants
Parking
Miscellaneous

Operating cost recoverable - PEO

Recoverable expenses
Utilities
Amortization
Property taxes
Payroll
Janitorial
Repairs and maintenance
Property management and advisory fee
Security
Administrative
Road and ground
Insurance

7

ble

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

727,943 804,236
1,047,173 1,313,369
143,700 139,259
140,028 129,515
2,058,844 2,386,379
812,793 729,089
2,871,637 3,115,468
574,521 534,901
587,416 563,795
445,156 442,424
253,104 253,104
214,395 190,665
193,615 159,577
59,244 86,977
37,372 4,798
25,034 23,119
24,227 20,693
18,711 18,247
2,432,795 2,298,300
301,269 348,006
388,293 388,293
77,339 68,852
22,770 —
84,754 27,439
874,425 832,590
3,307,220 3,130,890

(435,583) (15,422)
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Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

4, Building operations (continued)

2018 2017
$ $
Building revenue per above 2,871,637 3,115,
Eliminated PEO portion (812,793) (729,089
2,058,334 2:386,37%
336,
N4

Building expensesper above 3,307,220 3,130,890
Eliminated PEO portion (812,793) (729,089)
2,494,427 2,401,801

5. Building financing

first mortgage on the property located at 40 Sheppard Avenue West\a géneral security
- payable in monthly

6n in the pension plans and benefits plan (for post-retirement
closed to all new employees as of May 1, 2006. All employees joining after
option of participating in a self-directed RRSP (registered retirement savings

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 10



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

6. Employee future benefits (continued)

The funded status of the Association’s pension plans and post-retirement benefit planAQsing

actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2018 was as follows:

Basic Supplemental non-
pension plan pensionplan bene

$
= A4
Accrued benefit
obligation (24,698,000) (1,828,8 956,000) (39,482,800)
Plan assets at
fairvalue 26,335,600

Funded status - plan
surplus (deficit)

The funded status of the Association’s pension plans and post-ret enefit plan using

actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Other

Basic Sup ntal non-pension
pension pl pension plan benefitplan Total
i\ $ $

\4

Accrued benefit

obligation (24,412)500) (1,905,800) (14,241,800) (40,560,100)
Plan assets at
fairvalue 26,726,4 1,894,600 — 28,621,000

Funded status - plan
surplus (deficit)

PEO measures i definefit obligationg and the fair value of plan assets related to the
basic and suppfementalNgénsion plans for/accounting purposes as at December 31 each year
ctuarial valuation for funding purposes. The most
luation of the pension plans for funding purposes, was as of

using an actuarial valuagion prepated for accounting purposes. The most recent actuarial
valuation for accounting pyrposés was as of December 31, 2018.

TRe net assets of the Association are restricted to be used at the discretion of Council and
inclixdes the Assocjation’s investment in capital assets of $29,008,613 (2017 - $28,491,815).

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 11



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

8. Council discretionary reserve

salaries and benefits for staff time spent on these projects.

Emerging Discipline Task Force
Governance Working Group Phase 1
30 by 30 Task Force

Council Term Limits Task Force
Council Composition Task Force

9. Full time salaries and benefits

During the year, the Association incurred 2 $11,790,887 (2017 - $11,763,548) for
salary and benefits costs for its full-tim &
attributable to special projects approv« uncil and disclos€grin Note 8.

10. Change in non-cash working capitg

2018 2017
$ $
(6,738) 72,287
(15,073) (124,075)
427,978 (26,328)
202,147 185,960
608,314 107,844

11. Custodial account

The Associati

A on maintains aseparate bank account for the Council of Ontario Deans of
mgineering.

agh held in the bank account totaling $156,437 (2017 - $142,264) is not reported

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 12



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

12. Commitments

The Association has obligations under non-cancelable operating leases and agrgemengs for
various service agreements. The payments to the expiry of the leases and agfeements

follows:

$
2019 1,449, 493
2020
2021

13. Chapters of the Association

The financial information of the 36 chapters of the Associatiqn are individually not material and,
therefore, have not been consolidated in these financial statements. Furtheymore, management
believes that the effort and cost required to prepare financial statements fér each chapter for

consolidation purposes far exceed the benefits of doing so.

er eXpenses totaling $817,850 (2017 - $887,498)
chapter allotme and $293,850 (2017 - $290,723)
ptersyDuring the year, the Association also incurred

During the year, the Association paid chap
including $524,000 (2017 - $596,775) iy
in other disbursements to individual ch@

the various operating expenses reported
changes in net assets.

14. Financial instrumeyp

associated wit
Management § i L use of an investment manager to monitor and manage
investments.

Liquidity risk

Currency ¥isk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
ctuate due ¥0 changes in foreign exchange rates. PEO’s international and US equity pooled
fund_ investients are denominated in foreign currencies the value of which could fluctuate in
part due 8 changes in foreign exchange rates.

15. Government remittances

Accounts payables and accrued liabilities includes $307,724 (2017 - $318,916), with respect to
government remittances payable at year end.

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY Page 13



Association of Professional Engineers of Ontario

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2018

16. Contingencies

PEO has been named in litigation matters, the outcome of which is undeterminable and

loss would be charged to operations in the year of resolution or earlier if

e logsNs likely and
determinable.
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C-525-2.1
Appendix B

Professional Engineers Ontario
Financial highlights for the year ended December 31, 2018
Report to the Audit and Finance Committees — March 12, 2019

Highlights
For the year ended December 31, 2018, Professional Engineers Ontario (“PEQ”) generated an
excess of revenue over expenses of $141.6k before Council discretionary reserve expenses as
compared to $9.2k in 2017. The surplus was reduced by Council discretionary reserve expenses of
$18.5k in 2018 as compared to $35k in 2017 resulting in a net excess of revenues over expenses of
$123.1k as compared to a loss of $25.8k in 2017.

The 2018 Council discretionary reserve expenses consist of spending on the 30 by 30 Task Force,
Emerging Disciplines Task Force and the Governance Working Group Phase 1. During the course
of the year, management undertook several measures to control and reduce operational costs.
PEO fees remained frozen for the tenth consecutive year and continue to remain the lowest
amongst engineering associations in Canada. All other fees remained unchanged as well.

Revenue
Total revenue in 2018 was $25.1m vs $24.8m in 2017 which is $253k or 1 per cent higher than the
prior year largely due to the following reasons:

- Higher Application, Registration, exam and other fees ($7m in 2018 vs $6.5m in 2017)
An increase of $516k due to a growth in the number of registrations; increase in revenues from
the professional practice exams; technical exams and the national exam program; higher
Engineer Intern (EIT) revenues; increase in application and other revenues.

- Higher P.Eng. revenues ($15.7m in 2018 vs $15.4m in 2017)
An increase of $287k in P.Eng. revenue representing a 2 per cent increase in membership
revenues, which is consistent with the prior year trend.

The above increases were partially offset by:

- Lower Building operations revenue ($2.1m in 2018 vs $2.4m in 2017)
A decrease of $328k in Building operations revenue is largely due to unleased space. As of Dec.
31, 2018 there was approx. 12% or 13,000 sq ft of unleased space.

- Lower Investment income ($64k in 2018 vs $287k in 2017)
The $223k decrease in investment income in 2018 is largely due unrealized capital losses on
investments due to unfavourable market conditions.

Expenses
Total expenses in 2018 before Council discretionary spend were $25.0m vs $24.8m in 2017. This
represents an increase of $120.5k or 0.5 per cent than the prior year primarily due to the following:

- Higher Legal (corporate, prosecution and tribunal) expenses ($1.1m in 2018 vs $914k in2017)
The $159k increase is due to higher costs in 2018 for discipline prosecution, costs for legal
counsel for ongoing litigation, costs for court reporter, tribunal fees, etc.

- Higher costs for Purchased services ($1.6m in 2018 vs $1.5m in2017)
The $128k increase in costs for Purchased services in 2018 is largely due to higher costs for
Council elections in 2018 (the vendor who provided the voting services for the 2017 Council
elections did not charge the full fee due to technical issues encountered during the elections);
exam marking and invigilation costs; costs for the practice advisory review survey that was not
conducted in 2017; higher costs for scanning licensing and other records; costs for audio visual
services and catering at various events such as the AGM, etc.

- Anincrease in spend on Contract staff ($305k in 2018 vs $189k in 2017)
The increase of $116k for spending on contractors in 2018 was necessitated due some staff in

Page 1 of 3
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the Corporate Services, the Licensing and Regulatory Compliance departments being away
on long term leave.

- Higher spend on Computers and telephone ($968k in 2018 vs $854k in 2017).

The increase of $114k is due to higher costs for software support contracts, server maintenance
contracts and non-capital software licences.

- Aniincrease in costs for Building operations ($2.5m in 2018 vs $2.4m in 2017)
The $93k increase is largely due to higher expenses for utilities, repairs & maintenance, security,
janitorial, amortization and other costs.

The above increases in expenses are partially offset by:

- Lower spend on Consultants ($235k in 2018 vs $460k in 2017)
A decrease in spend of approx. $224k in 2018 largely due to no spend on IT consultant for the
Aptify project and no spend on branding consultant for the Public Information Campaign (PIC) in
2018 as the consultants for these projects had completed their deliverables in 2017. There was
also no spend on a consultant for an audit of Council elections in 2018 there were no technical
issues encountered unlike during the 2017 elections.

- Lower spend on Postage and courier ($530k in 2018 vs $638k in 2017)
There was a decrease of $109k in postage and courier costs largely due to reduced postage for
mailing Engineering Dimensions because of an increase in the signup for the digital edition of
the magazine. In addition, there were and lower postage costs for Council elections.

- Adecrease in Amortization expenses ($1.2m in 2018 vs $1.3m in 2017)
Lower Amortization costs due to full depreciation on audio visual equipment and deferred
implementation of the Aptify project.

- Lower Chapter expenses ($818k in 2018 vs $887k)
The $70k decrease in Chapters spend in 2018 is largely due to lower travel related expenses for
attendance at various events and lower allotment payments in 2018.

- Lower Advertising expenses ($99k in 2018 vs $157k in 2017)
Advertising expenses were lower by $57k due to a decrease in spend on staff recruitment and
newspaper, magazine and other advertising costs.

Capital Assets

Total capital spending in 2018 was $1.7m compared to $250k in 2017. Building improvements both to
PEO space and common space totaling $1.3m were made to the building in 2018. The net book value
of the building was $32.8m at December 31, 2018. A breakdown of the spend are shown below:

In (000’s)
TYPE FY18-ACT FY17-ACT Variance
Additions Additions [Fav/(Unfav)]
Building Improvements
2018 includes 4t floor leasehold improvement
for new tenant. $396 $100 ($296)
Building Improvements (recoverable)
2018 includes elevator upgrades, heat pump
replacement, 4t floor public corridor fit up,
generator replacement work, and asset $872 $36 ($836)
spending report.
Computer hardware and software
2018 includes desktop/laptop upgrades, NAS
replacement and SQL upgrade. $127 $109 ($18)
2017 included WIFI upgrade, virtual server
HW and SW.
Page 2 of 3
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Furniture, fixtures and telephone equipment. $6 $4 ($2)
Work in progress
2018 includes APTIFY upgrade, website $343 $1 ($342)
upgrade, and 4t floor common area project.

TOTAL $1,745 $250 ($1,495)

Building Operations

The operating statement for the building is included in Appendix A-2 and is also summarized in Note
4 of the 2018 Audited Financial Statements. The building generated $2.9m in revenue including
PEO'’s share of recoverable expenses but excluding base rent had PEO paid market rent for its
space. Total recoverable expenses were $2.4m and other expenses totaled $874k thereby creating a
deficit of $436k as compared to a deficit of $15k in the prior year. The increase in deficit over 2017
was due primarily to lower revenue due to unleased vacant space and higher operating costs.

Appendices:

Appendix A-1 - 2018 Draft Statement of Revenue and Expenses - variances

Appendix A-2 - 2018 Draft 40 Sheppard Statement of Revenue and Expenses - variances

Joint AUC-FIC comm meeting, Mar 12, 2019
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Professional Engineers Ontario

Statement of Revenue and Expenses - Variance Analysis Appendix A-1
Year Ended December31, 2018 Mar 12, 2019
2018 2017 2018 2018 Vs 2017 [Fav/(Unfav)] 2018 [Fav/(Unfav)] 2018 [Fav/(Unfav)] 2018
Actual Actual Forecast Actual Vs Actual Actual Vs Forecast Actual Vs Budget Budget
A B C D E F G H T J
S.No REVENUE $ $ $ $ % $ % $ % $
1 P.Eng revenue $15,731,903 $15,444,463 $15,591,950 $287,440 1.9% $139,953 0.9% ($223,597) -1.4% $15,955,500
2 Application, registration, exam and other fees 6,966,526 6,450,742 6,944,713 $515,784 8.0% 21,813 0.3% 176,554 2.6% 6,789,972
3 Building operations 2,058,844 2,386,379 2,025,894 ($327,535) -13.7% 32,950 1.6% (487,564) -19.1% 2,546,408
4 Advertising income 270,005 269,958 260,000 $47 - 10,005 3.8% (89,995) -25.0% 360,000
5 Investment income 64,460 287,341 205,000 ($222,881) -77.6% (140,540) -68.6% (149,540) -69.9% 214,000
TOTAL REVENUE $25,091,738 $24,838,883 $25,027,557 $252,855 1.0% $64,181 0.3% ($774,142) -3.0% $25,865,880
EXPENSES
6 Staff salaries and benefits/Retiree and future benefits 11,778,442 11,742,284 11,988,172 (36,158) -0.3% 209,730 1.7% 890,284 7.0% 12,668,726
7 Building operations 2,494,427 2,401,801 2,489,140 (92,626) -3.9% (5,287) -0.2% (38,409) -1.6% 2,456,018
8 Purchased Services 1,620,259 1,492,430 1,675,552 (127,829) -8.6% (44,707) -2.8% 40,093 2.4% 1,660,352
9 Amortization 1,210,440 1,280,598 1,241,658 70,158 5.5% 31,218 2.5% 96,656 7.4% 1,307,096
10  Legal (corporate, prosecution and tribunal) 1,072,994 913,788 1,055,978 (159,206) -17.4% (17,016) -1.6% (579,439) -117.4% 493,555
1" Engineers Canada 982,774 960,080 982,774 (22,694) -2.4% 0 0.0% (18,774) -1.9% 964,000
12 Computers and telephone 968,239 854,024 1,081,396 (114,215) -13.4% 113,157 10.5% 107,609 10.0% 1,075,848
13 Occupancy costs 885,083 817,268 870,165 (67,815) -8.3% (14,918) -1.7% 18,756 21% 903,839
14 Chapters 817,850 887,498 822,673 69,648 7.8% 4,823 0.6% 39,950 4.7% 857,800
15 Volunteer expenses 726,230 738,032 720,176 11,802 1.6% (6,054) -0.8% 66,835 8.4% 793,065
16 Transaction fees 544,817 536,201 551,485 (8,616) -1.6% 6,668 1.2% (2,277) -0.4% 542,540
17 Postage and courier 529,756 638,415 611,113 108,659 17.0% 81,357 13.3% 87,364 14.2% 617,120
18  Contract staff 305,197 189,353 340,666 (115,844) -61.2% 35,469 10.4% (101,216) -49.6% 203,981
19  Consultants 235,196 459,679 285,820 224,483 48.8% 50,624 17.7% 312,304 57.0% 547,500
20  Recognition, grants and awards 141,498 178,010 174,812 36,512 20.5% 33,314 19.1% 32,102 18.5% 173,600
21 Office supplies 134,263 132,120 103,691 (2,143) -1.6% (30,572) -29.5% (30,983) -30.0% 103,280
22 Insurance 127,030 116,481 129,912 (10,549) -9.1% 2,882 2.2% (2,793) -2.2% 124,237
23 Printing 102,310 113,406 113,560 11,096 9.8% 11,250 9.9% 13,690 11.8% 116,000
24 Advertising 99,268 156,729 120,897 57,461 36.7% 21,629 17.9% 12,782 11.4% 112,050
25  Staff expenses 88,055 100,522 139,320 12,467 12.4% 51,265 36.8% 53,505 37.8% 141,560
26  Professional development 86,057 120,985 153,961 34,928 28.9% 67,904 44 1% 120,443 58.3% 206,500
27 TOTAL EXPENSES $24,950,185 $24,829,704 $25,552,921 ($120,481) -0.5% $602,736 2.4% $1,118,482 4.3% $26,068,667
28 Eﬁgiisoggﬁg}'gg“ OVER EXPENSES BEFORE $141,553 $9,179 ($525,364) $132,374 1442.1% $666,917 126.9% $344,340 -169.8% ($202,787)
29 COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY RESERVE EXPENSES 18,472 34,967 80,000 16,495 47.2% 61,528 -76.9% (18,472) -100.0% 0
30 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $123,081 ($25,788) ($605,364) $148,869 -577.3% $728,445 120.3% $325,868 -160.7% ($202,787)
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Professional Engineers Ontario
40 Sheppard Statement of Revenue and Expenses
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Appendix A-2
Mar 12, 2019

2018 2017 2018 Vs 2017 [Fav/(Unfav)] 2018 2018 [Fav/(Unfav)]
Actual Actual Actual Vs Actual ___Forecast Actual Vs Forecast
S.No REVENUE = ~ = = 3 . 9
1 Rental 727,943 804,236 (76,293) -9.5% 692,447 35,496 5.1%
2  Operating cost reimbursements 1,859,966 2,042,458 (182,492) -8.9% 1,826,516 33,450 1.8%
3 Parking 143,700 139,259 4,442 3.2% 132,600 11,100 8.4%
4  Miscellaneous 140,028 129,515 10,513 8.1% 130,370 9,658 7.4%
5 Total REVENUE 2,871,637 3,115,468 (243,831) -7.8% 2,781,933 89,704 3.2%
RECOVERABLE EXPENSES
6 Utilities 574,521 534,901 (39,620) -7.4% 569,012 (5,509) -1.0%
7  Amortization 587,416 563,795 (23,621) -4.2% 587,478 62 0.0%
8 Property taxes 445,156 442,424 (2,731) -0.6% 443,793 (1,363) -0.3%
9 Payroll 253,104 253,104 0) 0.0% 253,104 - 0.0%
10 Janitorial 214,395 190,665 (23,730) -12.4% 211,715 (2,680) -1.3%
11 Repairs and maintenance 193,615 159,577 (34,038) -21.3% 173,694 (19,921) -11.5%
12 Property management and advisory fees 59,244 86,977 27,733 31.9% 59,244 (0) 0.0%
13 Security 37,372 4,798 (32,575) -679.0% 20,449 (16,923) -82.8%
14 Administration 25,034 23,119 (1,916) -8.3% 25,182 148 0.6%
15 Road and ground 24,227 20,693 (3,534) -17.1% 20,890 (3,337) -16.0%
16 Insurance 18,711 18,247 (464) -2.5% 18,731 20 0.1%
2,432,795 2,298,300 (134,496) -5.9% 2,383,292 (49,503) -2.1%
OTHER EXPENSES
17 Interest expense on note and loan payable 301,269 348,006 46,737 13.4% 301,269 (0) 0.0%
18 Amortization of building 388,293 388,293 - 0.0% 388,293 0) 0.0%
19 Amortization of deferred costs 77,339 68,852 (8,486) -12.3% 77,339 0 0.0%
20 Amortization of tenant inducements 22,770 - (22,770) 0.0% (22,770) 0.0%
21 Other non-recoverable expenses 84,754 27,439 (57,315) -208.9% 94,986 10,232 10.8%
874,425 832,590 (41,834) -5.0% 861,887 (12,538) -1.5%
22 Total EXPENSES 3,307,220 3,130,890 (176,330) -5.6% 3,245,179 (62,042) -1.9%
23 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (435,583) (15,422) (420,161) 2724.4%  (463,246) 27,663 -6.0%
24 Gross Revenue 2,871,637 3,115,468 2,781,933
25 Revenue Interco reclass (812,793) (729,089) (756,039)
26 PEO Reported Revenue 2,058,844 2,386,379 2,025,894
27 Gross Expense 3,307,219 3,130,890 3,245,179
28 Recoverable Exp Intercoreclass (812,793) (729,089) (756,039)
29 PEO Reported Expense 2,494,427 2,401,801 2,489,140
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Briefing Note — Decision C-525-2.2

RECOMMENDATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR FOR 2019

Purpose: To approve the recommendation of the appointment of an auditor for 2019 to members.
Motion to consider: (requires a simple majority of votes cast to carry)

That Council recommend to members at the May 2019 Annual General Meeting the appointment of

Deloitte LLP as PEQO’s auditor for 2019 to hold office until the next annual meeting or until their
successor is appointed.

Prepared by: Chetan Mehta — Director, Finance

Motion Sponsor: Ishwar Bhatia, M.Eng., P.Eng., Eastern Region Councilor, Chair - Audit
Committee

1. Need for PEO Action

It is necessary for Council to recommend the appointment of an auditor for 2019 to members at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting for their approval.

Section 52 of By-Law 1 states:

The members of each annual meeting shall appoint one or more auditors who shall be chartered
accountants to hold office until the next annual meeting and if an appointment is not so made, the
auditor in office shall continue in office until a successor is appointed.

2. Proposed Action / Recommendation

That Council approve the recommendation of the Audit Committee that Deloitte LLP be appointed

as PEQO’s auditor for 2019.

3. Peer Review & Process Followed

As part of every five-year cycle, an RFP for audit services was issued to
Process | reputable firms in late July 2016. After a review of the proposals submitted, the
Followed | AUC in 2016 unanimously decided to select Deloitte as PEO’s auditor for the
next five years with the requirement that the appointment be confirmed every
year by Council and the membership.

Council | Council is to recommend to members at the May 2019 Annual General Meeting
Identified | the appointment of Deloitte LLP as PEQO’s auditor for 2019 to hold office until the
Review next annual meeting or until their successor is appointed.

Actual On March 13, 2019, the Audit Committee approved the recommendation of the
Motion appointment of Deloitte LLP as PEO’s auditor for 2019 be presented to Council
Review for approval.

4. Next Steps

Members will be asked to approve the appointment of Deloitte LLP as PEQO’s auditor at the Annual
General Meeting in May.

525th Meeting of Council — March 21-22, 2019 Association of Professional

Engineers of Ontario



Briefing Note — Decision

C-525-2.3

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY

Purpose: To approve the revised Expense Reimbursement Policy.

Motion to consider: (requires a simple majority of votes cast to carry)
That Council approve the Expense Reimbursement Policy.

Prepared by: Chetan Mehta, Director - Finance
Motion Sponsor: Ishwar Bhatia, M.Eng., P.Eng., Eastern Region Councilor, Chair - Audit Committee

1. Need for PEO Action

PEQO’s expense reimbursement policy was due for review in 2016. Initial work on revising the policy
commenced in 2016 to incorporate the feedback received from staff and volunteers when it was felt that
further research should be conducted to consider the expense reimbursement policies of other
organizations, including other provincial engineering associations.

Subsequently, after a review of the polices in other organizations and after inputs from the management
team and other staff, a policy was drafted to seek additional feedback from other stakeholders in 2017. The
peer review process followed has been outlined in Section 4.

2. Proposed Action / Recommendation
That the draft Expense Reimbursement Policy be approved by Council.

3. Next Steps (if motion approved)

The Expense Reimbursement Policy will be communicated to staff and volunteers once approved by
Council. Adherence to the policy will be monitored by the approvers and Finance staff. An appeals process
is outlined in the policy for any volunteer or staff whose claim has been denied.

4. Peer Review & Process Followed

Process Followed PEQ’s expense reimbursement policy was due for review in 2016.
Council Identified Peer review groups were:
Review e Finance staff, the Senior Management Team, the Chapters Office and

other stakeholders
e Audit Committee
e Finance Committee
e Advisory Committee on Volunteers (ACV)
Actual Motion In 2017, research was conducted to review the expense reimbursement
Review policies of other organizations including other provincial engineering
associations. In addition, feedback was sought from the senior management
team, the Chapters office and other stake holders for improvements to the
policy. The expense policy was revised to incorporate some of the practices in
other organizations and the feedback received from the various stakeholders
identified above.

525t Meeting of Council — Mar 21, 22 2019
Association of Professional
Engineers of Ontario



The revised draft policy incorporating the proposed changes was reviewed by
the Finance Committee at the meeting held on July 24, 2018 and the feedback
provided by the committee members was incorporated in the draft.

This draft was then reviewed by the ACV (Advisory Committee on Volunteers)
on August 9, 2018 and the feedback provided has been incorporated in the
policy.

The revised draft policy incporating feedback from the above mentioned and
various other stakeholders then was then reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee in a meeting held on November 1, 2018.

5. Appendices
Appendix A — PEO Expense Reimbursement Policy

525t Meeting of Council — Mar 21-22 2019
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‘ PEO POLICY NUMBER: Policy numbers will be assigned after Policy and Procedures Manual is completed.

Approval Date: 3ure-9-2044Mar 22
2019

Expense Reimbursement Policy Approved by: Council (C-494523-42.3)

Review Date: junre30,2016)une 2021

POLICY Professional Engineers Ontario (PEO) will reimburse PEO Councillors, PEO

STATEMENT volunteers and PEO staff for all reasonable expenses on travel,
accommodation, meal and other miscellaneous expenses incurred while
conducting PEO business.

PURPOSE To set out rules and principles for the reimbursement of expenses
incurred while conducting PEO business to ensure fair and reasonable
practices and to provide a framework of accountability to guide the
effective use of PEO resources in the reimbursement of expenses.

APPLICATION AND | This policy sets out the rules for managing travel, accommodation, meals

SCOPE and other miscellaneous expenses for:

* all current members of PEO Council;

* all current members of PEO committees and task forces;

* all current members of PEO chapter executives except as otherwise
specified in Appendix F;

* all PEO staff;

The policy includes the following:
* Appendix A: Travel Expense Reimbursement
* Appendix B: Accommodation Expense Reimbursement
* Appendix C: Meals Expense Reimbursement
* Appendix D: Other/Miscellaneous Expense Reimbursement
* Appendix E: Expense Claims Appeals Procedures
* Appendix F: Chapter Specific Policies

Payment of expenses is limited to covering out-of-pocket expenses
actuaty-nedrredincurred and is subject to the limits outlined in this
Expense Reimbursement Policy.
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Where the Ontario Government pays expenses for LGA Councillors, PEO
will reimburse any incremental difference between the actual expense
incurred subject to the limits in the Policy and the Ontario Government
reimbursement rates.

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply for the purpose of this Expense
Reimbursement Policy:

Accommodation Expense - refers to hotel expenses incurred only for
approved attendance at PEO meetings or events where overnight stays
are necessary.

Approver - refers to the person with the authority to approve expense
claims submitted under this policy (refer to approval authority section).

Authorized External Event - refers to any meeting or event not organized
or hosted by PEO and for which prior approval for attendance on PEQ's
behalf has been provided, including but not limited to Engineers Canada
meetings or events or those of Engineers Canada's constituent members;
PEO approved political provincial fundraisers or other events for which
prior approval to attend on PEQ's behalf has been given.

Chapter Executive - refers to any sitting member of the executive of any
of PEQ's chapters.

Claimant - refers to any person making an expense claim under this policy.

Councillor - refers to any elected or appointed current member of PEO
Council.

Meals - includes restaurant meals required only while travelling to and
from or during approved attendance at PEO meetings or events where
the meal is not already provided by the event host.

PEO Meeting or Event - unless otherwise specified, refers to any event
or meeting hosted or organized by PEO, including PEO Council, PEO
committees/task forces meetings or PEO training sessions, conferences
or workshops.

Council, PEO committees/task forces meetings or PEO training sessions,
conferences or workshops.
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Travel — refers to direct travel by car, train, bus or airplane to and from
the home or work location of a PEO Councillor, PEO volunteer or PEO staff
member for approved attendance at a PEO event

Volunteer — refers to any volunteer, except for a Councillor who is
currently a member of a PEO committee, task force or chapter executive
who is duly elected or appointed and who is not an employee of PEO.

Volunteer Expense Claim Appeal Subcommittee of the Audit Committee
— refers to a sub-committee of the Audit Committee established by the
Audit Committee to resolve expense claims appeals by volunteers.

ALLOWABLE
EXPENSES

Expenses for attendance at defined PEO meetings or events shall be
reimbursed as follows:

Travel: All reasonable expenses for travel shall be reimbursed in
accordance with Appendix A.

Accommodation: All reasonable expenses for accommodation shall be
reimbursed in accordance with Appendix B.

Meals: All reasonable expenses for meals that are not included in the
transportation or provided by the event host shall be reimbursed in
accordance with Appendix C.

Other/Miscellaneous: Other reasonable expenses for goods and services
related to attendance at meetings or events shall be reimbursed in
accordance with Appendix D.

Expenses for Authorized External Meetings or Events: Authorization for
expenses for attendance at authorized external events must be obtained
prior to attending the event.

The President and the Registrar or their designated representative may on
occasion, incur expenses which exceed prescribed spending limits due to
the requirements of their positions and their roles as official
representatives of PEO.
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APPROVAL
AUTHORITY

Approvers must provide approval only for expenses that were incurred in
the performance of PEO business and only for claims that include all
appropriate information and supporting documentation.

Approvers will ensure that all charges/expenses are reasonable and within
the guidelines of this policy.

Approvers must-cannot approve their own expenses.

Event approval: Expenses will be reimbursed for attendance at PEO events
provided attendance at such events is in accordance with the Attendance at
PEO Meetings and Events Policy. Approval of expenses for attendance at
Authorized External Events must be obtained from the appropriate approver
(see below) prior to attending the event and is subject to budgetary

availability.

Staff expense reports must be submitted -ineludereceipttosand-the

concerned PEO manager or designate for approvaler. -

Volunteer expense report/s- must be submitted to the appropriate
committee advisor for approval. i

Sorvicas o : ) Clai .
appropriate-generaHedgernumber— Committee advisors will assist
volunteers to complete the expense report when reeessary—necessary.

LGA Councillors’ expense reports are to be approved by the Chief
Administrative Officer (CAO). Expenses in excess of those to which LGA
Councillors are entitled under Management Board of Cabinet directives on
government appointees or as specifically approved by the Management
Board of Cabinet, are to be approved by PEO’s Manager - Secretariat or the
ChiofAdrinistratie-OffiearCAO.

Councillor expenses, with the exception of the President’s Expenses, shall be
approved by the Manager - Secretariat or the Chief-Administrative
OfficerCAO.

The Registrar’s expenses are to be approved by the President.

The President’s expenses are to be approved by the President Elect.
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SUBMISSION
OF EXPENSES

Supporting documentation:

* All appropriate approvals must be obtained before incurring expenses; if
no prior approval was obtained, a written explanation indicating why
approval was not obtained prior to incurring the expense must be
submitted with the claim;

* All original, itemized receipts must be submitted with all claims (credit
card statements are not sufficient). When submitting an expense claim
electronically, an electronic copy of receipts in Portable Document
Format (PDF) is acceptable. It is recommended that original receipts be
kept until reimbursement is received.

* If there is no itemized receipt accompanying an expense claim, a written
explanation itemizing the expense along with the reason for the missing
receipt/s must be submitted.

A
Submission Process:

* All expense claims by staff must be submitted using the web-based
online travel and expense solution (i.e. Certify).

= Volunteers have the option of submitting expenses via Certify or via the
PEO Volunteer Expense claim form. When using this form, Abvelunteer

elaim-form-and-alengwith-all relevant receipts and supporting
documentation be either handed over to the concerned staff advisor or
preferably, emailed to volunteerexpenses@peo.on.ca

.
—_—

Limitation Period:

* Expense claims shall be submitted within three (3) months of incurring
the expense.

* All expenses incurred after October 15 must be submitted no later than
January 15 of the following year to meet year-end deadlines.

An approver is not authorized to process claims for expenses submitted

more than three (3) months after the expense was incurred; or, that are

submitted after the 15t of January for any expense incurred in the previous

year.

A

Exceptions: Claims for expenses that are submitted after the set deadlines or
are exceptions to, or are outside of this policy, are to be submitted for
review and final decision as follows:

[«

[«
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For volunteers (including the President), claims shall be submitted to the
Volunteer Expense Claim Appeal Subcommittee of the Audit Committee
at VolunteerExpenseAppeals@peo.on.ca;

For staff, claims shall be submitted to the Registrar.

For the Registrar, claims shall be submitted to the President-elect and
Past President.

NON- Non-reimbursable expenses include but are not limited to:
REIMBURSABLE *  Clothing and formal wear
EXPENSES * Home internet and telephone service

* Computer equipment or peripherals

*  Personal mobile telephone plans

* Air travel insurance coverage (except for AGM)

* Entertainment expenses

* Hotel room mini-bar

* Spacharges

* Laundry services except as outlined in Appendix D.

* In-room movies or games

* Telephone, photocopy, paper and ink cartridge charges except as

outlined in Appendix D.
* Personal items (e.g. toothbrush, cosmetics, medication, mouthwash,
etc.)

* Personal provisions (e.g. stationerygreceries)

* Alcohol {exceptasoutlined-inAppendinC)

*  Parking or traffic infractions

* Petcare

* Professional Services fees
APPEAL * Claims over the maximum allowable limits will be adjusted to the
PROCEDURES maximum allowable levels unless excepted in the Appendices.

* Adjustments that are questioned by the claimant will be referred to the
Director of Finance/Controller for verification.

*_Volunteer claims appeals will be referred to the Volunteer Expense
Claim Appeal Subcommittee of the Audit Committee for decision in
accordance with Appendix E.

* For the Registrar, appeals shall be submitted to the President-elect and
Past President for decision.

¢ Staff claims appeals will be referred to the Registrar for decision.
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= Decisions resulting from the appeals process are final.

RELATED PEO
POLICIES

The Expense Reimbursement Policy is a component of PEO’s Internal
Control Policies and Procedures.

RESPONSIBILITY

The PEO Finance Department has responsibility for the administration,
implementation and communication of all Internal Control Policies
including the Expense Reimbursement Policy.

All PEO Volunteers and PEO staff should be aware of the policy.
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Appendix A: Travel Expense Reimbursement

Travel arrangements shall be made well ahead of time, using the most eest-effectivecost-
effective mode of transportation.

Air travel

Air travel is permitted if it is the most practical and economical way to travel. Economy (coach)
class is the standard option for airline ticket purchase. Travelers are encouraged to book 7- to 14-
days in advance to minimize costs. Should an event be rescheduled or cancelled, ticket change or
cancellation fees will be covered.

Travel by other than economy class must have the prior approval of the President in the case of
the Registrar Councillors or volunteers, or the Registrar in the case of staff -and may be
considered only for flights of a_-duration of more than six consecutive hours.

Train or Bus travel

Travel by train or bus is permitted when it is the most practical and economic way to travel.
Economy (coach) class is the standard option for train or bus ticket purchase.

Automobile travel

PEO will reimburse expenses incurred through the use of a personal vehicle only by paying the
kilometric rate (see below) in effect at the time of the travel.

When road transportation is the most practical, economical way to travel, the order of
preference is:

1. Personal vehicle
* Itis the responsibility of the owner/user of the personal vehicle to carry relevant
vehicular insurance and to comply with prevailing vehicle related laws.
* PEO will not reimburse any personal vehicle maintenance or repair costs.
* _Gas usage for personal vehicles shall not be reimbursed.

2. Rental vehicle:
* Arental vehicle may be justified to travel to and from a PEO event only, and where it is
more economical than other travel options.

* Use of Only-mmid-sized models or smaller are-permittedis encouraged.
* Luxury and sports vehicles are prohibited.
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Any exceptions to the above should be documented prior to the rental if possible; and
guided by the principle that the rental vehicle chosen is the most economical and
practical size, taking into account the business purpose, number of occupants and safety
(including weather) conditions.

*__Rental cars must be refueled before returning the car to the rental company. PEO will

reimburse such refueling charges.

* to-oveoid-extra-charges—PEO-willnotreimbursePenalties or extra charges incurred for
returning an unrefueled car shall not be reimbursed.

o eebuelingsharges

* All PEO volunteers and staff are covered for bodily injury under PEQ’s travel accident
insurance. The purchase of motor vehicle liability insurance for rental vehicles may be
authorized.

Vehicle Accident reporting

All accidents must be reported immediately to local law enforcement authorities and, in the case
of staff, to the immediate supervisor. In addition:

In the case of a rental vehicle, advise the rental car agency and contact the motor vehicle liability
insurance provider to initiate the claims process.

Kilometric rate

Kilometric rate will be reimbursed at the maximum rate allowable by the Government of Canada,
Department of Finance policy as communicated by the Minister of Finance at the beginning of
each year and as published by PEO.

PEO does not pay mileage rates for rental vehicles.

Expense claims must be submitted with distances indicated in kilometers.

PEO may, from time to time, request proof of mileage travelled. Printouts from Google Maps,
MapQuest or the like are acceptable as proof of mileage. Certify mileage calculator will also be

acceptable. Mileage above the norm will require explanation in order to be reimbursed. In the
absence of an explanation, PEO will not reimburse mileage claims in excess of the norm.

Parking and Tolls
Reimbursement is provided for necessary and reasonable expenditures on parking, as well as

tolls for bridges, ferries, and highways, when necessary.
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Parking and toll claims will be reimbursed when accompanied by original receipts. Costs for
leasing 407 transponders shall not be reimbursed.

There is no reimbursement for traffic or parking violations or related legal fees.
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Taxis

Prior approval to use a taxi should be obtained whenever possible.

Taxis may be justified in cases where:

* group travel by cab is more economical than the total cost of having individuals travel
separately by public transit, shuttle or personal vehicle; or

* taking a cab allows for the meeting of an unusually tight meeting schedule.

Taxis may not be used to commute between home and PEO, except under exceptional
circumstances; for instance:

* health or safety considerations indicate it is the best, appropriate option; or B-transport
of work-related baggage or parcels is required.

Public Transit

Local public transportation including hotel/airport shuttles should be used whenever possible.
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Appendix B: Accommodation Expense Reimbursement

Hotel Accommodation

PEO will reimburse expenses for hotel accommodations only up to the preferred rate at the
hotel designated for the meeting or event. -Whenever possible room bookings at hotels where
PEO has preferred rates is required.

Penalties incurred for non-cancellation of guaranteed hotel reservations are the claimant’s
responsibility and may be reimbursed only in exceptional circumstances.
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Appendix C: Meals Expense Reimbursement

Meals

Only meals that are necessitated by travel schedule will be reimbursed.~within-thefollowing
Hmits: When more than one meal is claimed for in a day, the maximum can be allocated
between theall reimbursable meals regardless of what is spent on each meal.

For meal expenses that are submitted with original itemized receipts, the following daily
maximum limits which include taxes and gratuities apply:
* Breakfast $2025.00 per person

* Lunch $2035.00 per person
* Dinner $5055.00 per person

Limits-include-taxesand-gratuities—Expenses exceeding these limits will not be reimbursed.

Cost for alcohol will not be reimbursed as part of any meal expense. However, alcohol may be
served at events hosted by PEO such as Council meetings, AGMs, Council retreat, OPEA Gala,
etc. ORif it is necessary and desirable for a PEO President or Registrar to host and entertain
others in connection with PEO business.

Costs for alco-hol as part of a meal for official PEO business by staff and volunteers will be
reimbursed only with prior approval of the Registrar.

Reimbursement will not be provided for meals consumed at home or when included in the cost
of transportation, accommodation, seminars or conferences.

-Meal expenses that are missing itemized receipts may be reimbursed and will be subject to the
following daily maximum limits which include taxes and gratuity:
*  Breakfast $10.00 per person

* Lunch $15.00 per person

* Dinner $20 per person

En-route meals will only be reimbursed as is necessitated by the travel schedule_ where an
individual resides beyond a 100 km radius from the destination/event.
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Meals eaten in lieu of event group meals are not eligible for reimbursement.

Exceptions may be made for reasonable meal expenses incurred for approved attendance at
Authorized External Events.

« Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After:
Appendix D: Other/Miscellaneous Expense Reimbursement 0 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1.08 Ii

Reasonable incidental expenses for goods and services related to attendance at approved
meetings or events on behalf of PEO, and which are required in order to conduct PEO business,
shall be reimbursed up to a maximum of $1,000 per year per person.

Incidentals
Itemized receipts are required for all incidentals while travelling on PEO business.

Exceptions to the requirement for itemized receipts are:
Tic/
Bus fare between hotel and airport, train station, etc.
* One long distance call within Canada of reasonable length per day.
* Reasonable gratuities for porter, hotel room services, and taxis. Keep a record of
gratuities paid.

The following incidentals will be covered with itemized receipts in the following circumstances:
e If traveling on business for four consecutive nights or more, reimbursement is allowed
within reasonable limits for laundry, dry cleaning, and other hotel services such as
pressing, steaming, and shoe polishing.
* Internet connections, hotel business center access charges, computer access charges,
facsimile transmissions, word processing or photocopy services required to conduct
urgent PEO business that cannot wait.

Child care or care giver expenses
Child care or care giver expenses for volunteers participating on committees shall be
reimbursed up to a limit of $1500 per annum.

Entertainment
In the event that it is necessary and desirable for a PEO President or Registrar to host and
entertain others in connection with PEO business, PEO will reimburse expenses directly
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incurred, provided all items are appropriately claimed with an accompanying itemized receipt
and the expenses are made with reasonable discretion.

In all instances of hosting, it must be clearly indicated on the expenses claim the names and
affiliations of the individuals hosted and the purpose of the hosting activity. Prierapprovat-for

Partner Expenses
Where partners have been invited by the PEO President or Registrar to attend a PEO meeting

or event or authorized external event, PEO will pay reasonable travel and other expenses, in
accordance with this policy, for partners of Councillors, volunteers and staff, and invited guests
of the President or of the Registrar.

In-hotel child care services will be reimbursed for events where partners have been invited
excluding the AGM events and Chapter Leaders Conference.

PEO will not reimburse travel, meal or accommodation expenses for any additional guests.
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Appendix E: Expense Claim Appeals Procedures

Any volunteer denied a claim for reimbursement for expenses, may make-aemail
witten-a submission -to the Volunteer Expense Claim Appeal Subcommittee of the
Audit Committee at volunteerexpenseappeals@peo.on.ca; within 20 days of the
notification of denial of the claim, outlining the grounds for appeal. A copy of the
denied expense report must be attached.

The Volunteer Expense Claim Appeal Subcommittee of the Audit Committee will review
the appeal and provide a written decision. All subcommittee decisions are final and
binding.

Staff expense claims that are denied may be submitted to the Registrar for decision.

The Registrar will review the expense claim and provide a decision within 36-5 -7 days of
receiving the appeal. The decision of the Registrar is final and binding.

The Registrar’s claims that are denied may be submitted to the President-elect and Past

President for decision.

The foregoing shall not prevent a partial payment upon request for items that are in
compliance with the policy.
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Appendix F: Chapter Specific Policies

Definitions:
Chapter and Chapter related meetings — this includes Regional Congresses, RCC meetings and
any working group meeting as authorized by RCC.

Partner/Spouse — refers to any person accompanying the delegate other than another Chapter
delegate, unless they are living at the same address.

Approval Authority:
Chapter Volunteer Expenses that are to be reimbursed by PEO (rather than the Chapter) are to
be approved by the Chief Administrative Officer or Chapter Manager or their designate.

REGIONAL COUNCILLORS
Regional Councillor’s expenses for travel to/meals/attendance at events hosted by Regional
Councillor’'s home chapters will not be reimbursed if travelling less than 30 km one way.

Air, train or bus travel

Air, train or bus travel expenses for a partner/guest travelling with a delegate to a chapter or
chapter related event including RCC meetings shall be reimbursed up_to a maximum of twice a
year for each chapter.

Kilometric rate will be reimbursed for a partner/spouse that must travel separately from the
delegate on PEO Business once per year.

Hotel Accommodation

Regional Congress delegates hotel accommodations policy

* Itisimportant that all delegates inform the Chapter Office Administrative Assistant if
accommodation is NOT required to avoid no show penalties.

* East Central and West Central Regional Congresses are usually held locally where local
delegates can travel to the meeting location, meet, and go home on the same day. Prior
approval should be obtained from the Chapter Office in special circumstances where
overnight accommodation is required.

* For Eastern, Western and Northern Regional Congresses, hotel accommodations for
out-of-town congress delegates will be provided for one night.
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* Hotel accommodation is not provided for delegates from the local hosting chapter
unless approved by the Chapter Office.

* Second night accommodation is not offered as it is assumed that all delegates leave
after the congress. Additional night of accommodation may be provided by PEO in
special cases and with prior approval from the Chapter Office.

Meal Expenses
Partner expenses of en-route meals that are necessitated by separate travel, partner/spouse
group meals and meals in lieu of non-group meals are not reimbursable.

Where partners are authorized to attend an event within the scope of this policy, all meal
expenses are subject to the same limitations as registered delegates.

Partner Expenses

For Regional Congresses and RCC meetings, it is customary for spouse/partner to accompany
the delegate, volunteer or staff. Spouse/partner travel by air or train is restricted to once per
year per delegate per chapter (as per above) for RCC meetings.
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C-525-2.4

Briefing Note — By-Law Change

Decision

BY-LAW NO. 1 CHANGES — 2019 FEE INCREASES

Purpose: To approve changes to PEO fees in By-Law No.1, in accordance with prior Council decisions on
November 16, 2018 and February 8, 2019 to catch up with inflation since 2008.

Motion(s) to consider: (requires a 2/3 majority of votes cast to carry)

1.That Council includes in By-Law No. 1 fees currently collected for requesting remarking of
examinations and for examinations held outside of Canada.

2. That article 39 of By-Law No. 1 be repealed and replaced with Appendix A. It is understood that,
under the wording of article 39(1), the fees in place as of March 21, 2019 will continue to be payable

until May 1, 2019.

[Section 8(2) of the Professional Engineers Act, By-Law No. 1 - Article 39]

Prepared by: Jordan Max, Manager, Policy, Tribunals & Regulatory Affairs Department
Moved by: Gary Houghton, P.Eng., Chair, Legislation Committee

1. Need for PEO Action

e At the November 2018 Council meeting, Council reduced its projected operating budget deficit in
part by increasing application and examinations fee by 20%. At the February 8, 2019 Council
meeting, Council repealed section 59 of By-Law No. 1, which had been determined to be invalid,
and approved a complementary increase to all other fees in By-Law No. 1., without requiring
Council to seek member confirmation. The projected increase in revenues in 2019 is $1.5M. This
is a one-time increase to catch up with inflation since 2008, the last time the P.Eng. licence fee
was increased. Legal counsel has now drafted the relevant changes to Article 39 of By-Law No. 1.
for Council’s approval, effective May 1, 2019, which need to be passed before that date.

2. Proposed Action / Recommendation
e As per Council’s expressed policy intent at the November 2018 and February 2019 Council
meetings, all PEO fees related to all types of licenses, examinations, certificate of authorization,
consulting engineer designation, reinstatement, fee remission, and seals will be increased by 20%
to the nearest $5, effective May 1, 2019.

e In addition, two current fees that are not listed in By-Law No. 1 are now being included with a
20% increase: Requesting a re-marking of an Exam ($330), and Requesting an examination
outside of Canada ($180).

e To meet the May 1% deadline to maximize 2019 revenue, this by-law package excludes for the
time being two new fees approved by Council in November 2018; interviews to waive technical
examinations, and the Credit Card Convenience fee.

525th Council meeting, March 21-22, 2019 Association of Professional
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e As Council also expressed at its February 8, 2019 meeting, once these by-law changes are passed
by Council, they are effective immediately, without member confirmation required.

3. Next Steps (if motion approved)
e Staff will prepare for implementation of the fee increases through information technology, fees
payment, and communications, in time for the May 1, 2019 P.Eng. licence renewal cycle.

4. Policy or Program contribution to the Strategic Plan
e This initiative will provide the financial capacity to fulfill the 2018-2020 Strategic Plan
“Protecting the Public Interest” Focus Area: “PEO will focus its resources on regulatory
functions that help protect the public interest. We will strive for excellence by
rigorously and objectively reviewing the effectiveness and efficiency of all our
regulatory instruments and operations in the public interest.”

5. Financial Impact on PEO Budgets (for five years)

Operating Capital Explanation
Current $1.5M SO Incremental P.Eng. revenue with CPI (range determined by
to Year End implementation timing during 2019)
2nd $1.75M SO Incremental revenue based on P.Eng. licence forecast with
1.5% CPI and completed first year’s cycle
3rd $258K SO Incremental revenue based on P.Eng. licence forecast with
1.5% CPI
4t $261K SO Incremental revenue based on P.Eng. licence forecast with
1.5% CPI
5t $265K SO Incremental revenue based on P.Eng. licence forecast with
1.5% CPI

6. Peer Review & Process Followed

Process e Previous history on this proposal can be found in the February 8, 2019 Council
Followed meeting briefing note C-524-4.1
e At the February 8, 2019 Council meeting, Council passed the following motions:
1. That Council repeals section 59 of By-Law No. 1; this amendment is effective
immediately when passed without confirmation by the members.
2. That Council approves the policy intent to equally increase all PEO fees in
By-Law No. 1 to catch up with inflation since 2004 that were not increased
by Council at its November 16, 2018 meeting, as listed in Appendix B, using
section 8(2) of the Act and effective immediately;
e Accordingly, legal counsel was instructed to draft amendments to By-Law No. 1,
as attached at Appendix A
Council e Council has not directed any review.
Identified
Review
Actual e The motion, along with the By-Law changes and this briefing note, was reviewed
Motion and approved by the Legislation Committee at its March 8, 2019 meeting
Review

7. Appendices

e Appendix A — Proposed By-Law No. 1 Changes-Fee Increases
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C-525-2.4
Appendix A

BY-LAW NO. 1 AMENDMENTS
Fees General (Amended March 22, 2019)

39. (1) As of May 1, 2019, unless otherwise stated, fees including applicable taxes shall be paid on the
date specified by the Council. Between March 22, 2019 and May 1, 2019, the fees payable shall remain
as set out in this by-law as it read on March 21, 2019.

Licence Fees
(2) An applicant for a licence shall pay an application fee of $360.
(3) A person whose application for a licence has been accepted shall pay a registration fee of $300.

(4) Subject to Section 39(5), a holder of a licence shall pay an annual fee of $265 payable upon
registration and on or before each anniversary of registration.

(5) Every Member who has been a President of the association shall be designated as a “Life Member”
and is exempt from the requirement to pay the annual fee referred to in Section 39(4). (Amended as of
June 22, 2018)

Limited Licence Fees
(6) An applicant for a limited licence shall pay an application fee of $360.

(7) A person whose application for a limited licence has been accepted shall pay a registration fee of
$300.

(8) A holder of a limited licence shall pay an annual fee of $265 payable upon registration and on or
before each anniversary of registration. However, a former holder of the engineering technology class of
limited licence class is not required to pay an additional fee for reissuing the engineering technology
class of limited licence.

Provisional Licence Fees

(9) An applicant for a licence who is issued a provisional licence shall pay a registration fee of $300.
Temporary Licence Fees

(10) An applicant for a temporary licence shall pay an application fee of $780.

Engineering Intern Fees

(11) An applicant for a licence shall pay a fee of $90 upon becoming an engineering intern and shall pay
an annual fee of $90 on or before each anniversary of becoming an engineering intern.



Reinstatement Fees

(12) A member who resigned from the association shall pay the following fees before their licence may
be reinstated:

a. a reinstatement fee of $280;

b. the fees owing by the person to the association at the time the member resigned, if any; and
c. the fees payable for the current year and, if at the time of resignation the member’s annual
fee was reduced in accordance with Section 39(14) (Fee Remission), the member shall pay

a reduced annual fee of $70.

(13) A person whose licence or limited licence was cancelled for non-payment of fees shall pay the
following fees before their licence or limited licence may be reinstated:

a. the fees owing by the person to the association at the time the licence or limited licence was
cancelled;
b. the annual fee payable for the current year and, if at the time of cancellation the person’s
annual fee was reduced in accordance with Section 39(14) (Fee Remission), the person
shall pay a reduced annual fee of $70; and
c. subject to Section d, a reinstatement fee of,
i. $60, if the payments referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) are made in full within
90 days after the cancellation,
ii. $280, if the payments referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) are made in full more
than 90 days and within two years after the cancellation, and
iii. $555, if the payments referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) are made in full more
than two years after the cancellation;

d. If the person’s fees were reduced in accordance with Section 39(14) (Fee Remission) at the
time the licence or limited licence was cancelled, the reinstatement fee referred to in paragraph
(c) is as follows:

i. $60, if the payments referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) are made in full within two
years after the cancellation, and

ii. $555, if the payments referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) are made in full more than
two years after the cancellation.

Fee Remission



(14) The Registrar shall reduce part of the annual fee, to the amount set out in Section 39(15) of a holder
of a licence or a limited licence who meets the conditions of Section 41.1 of Regulation 941

(15) The reduced annual fee referred to in Section 39(14) is $70 for licence holders and limited licence
holders.

(16) If a person no longer meets the requirements of Section 41.1 of Regulation 941, the person shall
immediately pay the following fees:
a. any fees owed to the association;
b. the difference, if any, between the amount required to be paid by the licence or limited
licence holder as an annual fee for the current year and the amount required to be paid as an
annual fee for a person who pays a reduced fee in accordance with Section 39(15) for that
year; and
c. a fee of $60.
Consulting Engineer Fees
(17) A person who applies for designation or re-designation as a consulting engineer shall pay an
application fee of $265.

(18) A person who applies for permission to use the term “consulting engineers” shall pay an application
fee of $55.

(19) A consulting engineer shall pay a registration fee of $265 for each five year period of designation.
Certificate of Authorization Fee

(20) A person who applies for a certificate of authorization shall pay an application fee of $400.

(21) A holder of a certificate of authorization shall pay:

a. an annual fee of $400 payable upon acceptance of the application and on or before each
anniversary of the acceptance; and

b. for each replaced certificate of authorization, a fee of S60.
Examination Fees
(22) A person shall pay the following fees in relation to examinations, which are non-refundable except
for the fee set out in Section e.:

a. For each writing of the Professional Practice Examination, $200;

b. To write the first Technical Examination, $700;

c. To write any subsequent Technical Examination, $200;



d. Upon submission of a thesis, $360;

e. For each writing of an examination required in support of an application for designation as a
consulting engineer, $200;

f. An additional fee to write any examination outside of Canada, $180; and

g. To request remarking of any examination, $330.

Seal Fees, Replacement
(23) A person shall pay the following fees for the issuance of a seal:
a. $30 for a rubber seal; and

b. $85 for a metal seal.



Brieﬁng Note — Decision C-525-2.5

EQUITY & DIVERSITY COMMITTEE - CHAPTER EQUITY & DIVERSITY AWARD
Purpose: To approve the Proposal to introduce the Chapter Equity & Diversity Award.
Motion(s) to consider: (requires a simple majority of votes cast to carry)

That Council approve the Proposal to introduce Chapter Equity & Diversity Award as presented to the
meeting at C-525-2.5, Appendices A, B, C, D.

Prepared by: Rob Dmochewicz, MPR, Recognition Coordinator
Moved by: Ramesh Subramanian, EDC Council Liaison

1. Need for PEO Action
The mandate of the Equity and Diversity Committee (EDC) is to recommend an action plan to
integrate equity and diversity values and principles into the general policy and business operations of
PEO. To recognize significant equity and diversity contributions to the membership of the chapter
and/or the engineering community in their region, EDC recommends to introduce a Chapter Equity &
Diversity Award. After an extensive peer review, EDC submits the final version of the proposal, for
Council consideration and approval.

2. Proposed Action / Recommendation
That Council approve the Proposal to introduce Chapter Equity & Diversity Award.

3. Next Steps (if motion approved)
If approved by Council, the Award will be communicated to Chapters.

4. Policy or Program contribution to the Strategic Plan
The proposed Award is related to the following 2018-2020 Strategic Plan Objectives: #3 — Enhance
PEQ’s public image, #7 — Redefine the volunteer leadership frame-work, and #9 — Enhance corporate
culture.

5. Financial Impact on PEO Budgets (for five years)
There is no direct financial impact on PEO budget. The Chapter E&D Award will be sponsored by and
administered by the Chapter Executive. The award shall consist of a certificate to be presented to the
winner(s) by the Chapter Executive during the Chapter AGM.

Operating Capital Explanation
Current S S Funded from Surplus Fund (Council discretionary
to Year End funds)
2nd S S
3rd S S
4th S S
5th S S
525th Meeting of Council — March 21-22, 2019 Association of Professional
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If program is not designated as ending in less than five years (such as creating a Task Force),
subsequent years will be assumed to be similar to the fifth year of funding.

6. Peer Review & Process Followed

Process
Followed

Outline the Policy Development Process followed.

The Proposal to introduce Chapter E&D Award was submitted to RCC, for their

meeting in November 2016.

RCC has requested the PEO Awards Committee (AWC) to peer review the

proposal.

In September 2017, the AWC agreed that the proposal is a good initiative and

some of their comments included:

- The proposed award would be chapter-driven, administered and monitored
by Chapter Awards Committee (and not AWC);

- Evaluation criteria should be developed to ensure that the award selection
process is consistent amongst all chapters; and

- Developing a nomination form was suggested.

In July 2018, Scott Clark, Chief Administrative Officer, reviewed and accepted the

updated proposal (including feedback from AWC).

In July 2018, RCC motioned that the information on the Chapter E&D Award will

be distributed to Chapters and discussed at the September congresses. A

summary of collected feedback will be given to the Equity and Diversity

Committee for consideration. Moved by T. Chong and seconded by L.

MacCumber; motion carried.

In September 2018, the proposal was presented and discussed at the Chapter

Regional Congresses. EDC received a compiled feedback and questions (Appendix

D).

EDC discussed all questions and suggestions received from the Chapter Regional

Congresses. The final version of the proposal is presented in Appendices A, B, C.

7. Appendices

e Appendix A — Chapter E&D Award — Nomination Procedures & Criteria

e Appendix B — Chapter E&D Award — Nomination Form

e Appendix C — Chapter E&D Award — Selection Criteria

e Appendix D — Chapter E&D Award — Feedback from the Chapter Regional Congresses

e Appendix E — Chapter E&D Award — Equity and Diversity Committee Terms of Reference
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Ontario Professional Engineers Chapter Equity and Diversity Award

NOMINATION PROCEDURES

Purpose of the Award

1.1. The purpose of this award is to recognize an individual’s equity and diversity contributions at
the Chapter level. It is given for significant contributions to the membership of the Chapter
and/or the engineering community in their region, that promote equity and diversity.

Format of the Award

2.1. The award shall consist of a certificate to be presented to the winner(s) by the Chapter
Executive during the Chapter AGM.

Eligibility

3.1. Chapter members who are not part of the Selection Committee; and have been active
members of the Chapter for the previous two years are eligible to receive this award. More
than one awardee may be chosen in a given year but the award need not be given if no
suitable nominations are received. The same person shall not receive the award in two
consecutive years.

. Administration

4.1. The Chapter Equity and Diversity Award is sponsored by and administered by the Chapter
Executive.

Nominations
5.1. Nominations shall be solicited electronically via Chapter email or by mail.

5.2. Nominations can be made to any Chapter by any PEO member but are to be associated with
the nominee's activities in that Chapter.

5.3. Nominations shall be submitted annually to the Chapter Awards Committee by a process and
date to be chosen by the Chapter. They should address the quality and quantity of the
nominee's service to the Chapter, with supporting documentation, when possible.

5.4.  Each nomination for the Chapter Equity and Diversity Award shall consist of:
(a) The completed Chapter Equity and Diversity Award Nomination Form;
(b) At least two letters of support, from each nominator; and
(c) Supporting documents (optional) such as newspaper or journal clippings, newsletters,
photographs, etc.



6.

10.
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Selection Committee

6.1. The Chapter Awards Committee or Chapter Executive shall form a Selection Committee for
this award.

Selection of the Awardee

7.1. The nominee's activities that shall be considered for this award include:

(a) Promoting or supporting equity and diversity within the Chapter (e.g., organizing an event
which would promote or influence the creation of a diverse and inclusive environment
that increases diverse professional engineers’ participation in the profession — a
discussion or case study or others, or promoting PEQ’s Equity and Diversity Module
completion);

(b) Promoting equity, diversity and inclusion in the recruitment of Chapter’s committee
members;

(c) Promoting or supporting equity and diversity within the profession through involvement
in the engineering community (e.g. work on the diversity at the workplace or profession
or community at large).

7.2.  The Selection Committee shall make its decision based upon the documentation submitted.
Each member of the Committee shall have one vote.

7.3. If there are no appropriate candidates, the award need not be given in a particular year.

7.4.  The Selection Committee Chair shall communicate the Committee’s decision to the Chapter
Chair and the Chair of the Chapter Awards Committee. The Chair of the Chapter Awards
Committee notifies the recipient(s).

Presentation of the Award

8.1. The award shall be presented to the winner(s) by the Chapter Awards Committee during the
Chapter’s AGM. This will serve to promote the award to the largest audience possible.

Publicity

9.1. The award shall be publicized through the Chapter and PEQ’s Equity and Diversity Committee
will prepare the communication for publication on the PEO websites and in Engineering
Dimensions.

Deadlines (to be established by Chapters)

10.1. Solicit nominations by ##-##.

10.2. Nominations are due by ##-##.

10.3. Jurors shall submit their evaluation by ##-##.

10.4. Awardee selected by ##-## [some time before the Chapter AGM].
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NOMINATION CRITERIA

Nominee must be an actively contributing Chapter member for a minimum of two years.
To be eligible, a nominee must be either a P.Eng. or EIT, in good standing with PEO.

The same person cannot be awarded in two consecutive years.

Amongst other involvement in the life of the Chapter, the nominee must demonstrate an activity /ies
in one of the following areas:

(a) Promoting or supporting equity and diversity within the Chapter (e.g., organizing an event which
would promote or influence the creation of a diverse and inclusive environment that increases
diverse professional engineers’ participation in the profession — a discussion or case study or
others, or promoting PEQ’s Equity and Diversity Module completion)

(b) Promoting equity, diversity and inclusion in the recruitment of Chapter’s committee members

(c) Promoting or supporting equity and diversity within the profession through involvement in the
engineering community (e.g., work on the diversity at the wo